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CORPORATE PROFILE
D E I

As a pioneer in the IT industry, Computer And Technologies (“C&T") Group
operates its business on a vision to build a better world with Information
Technology. Since our establishment in 1991 and listing in the main board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: SEHK00046) in 1998,
C&T Group has committed to providing best-of-breed software products
from human resources management to enterprise-level information
management, procurement management and retail management to
enable organisations to run their businesses and operations better. Apart
from software products, the Group also has a long-standing track record in
delivering effective IT solutions and quality services, including IT solutions
design and implementation, software development, online e-Services
as well as business processing outsourcing services, to enhance the
competitive advantages of our clients.

For more than two decades, C&T's products and services have been
widely adopted across multiple industries, from local conglomerates to
multinational corporations and government organisations. Leveraging on
C&T's products and services, our customers are enhancing their business
and operation covering from the basic necessities of our daily life including
clothing, food, housing and transportation to the highly-specialised and
professional services.

Apart from serving extensively the large commercial organisations, C&T
is also an active services provider for government organisations and the
public sector in delivering world-class innovative and large-scale mission-
critical IT solutions. Our credentials include implementation of the 2
generation Automated Securities Trading System for Shanghai Stock
Exchange, the world-first and award winning electronic tendering system
for the Hong Kong SAR Government and the 7x24 mission-critical customer
care and billing system supporting over 2 million households in Hong Kong.
Our professional services also extend to integration of modern technologies
and management best practice into traditional business segments. The
award-winning cemetery management system we built for the Board of
Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries is one of the many
successful examples of ours.

Our staff is the most important factor for our success. We recruit and
develop high caliber professionals who are both knowledgeable and
skillful in latest technology spectrums including web-based development,
cloud services, mobile applications and security networks. Our people are
also experienced in large-scale software implementation ranging from
project management and technical design to system development and
maintenance. Our sustained accomplishment is also a reflection of our
committed practice of IT development standards and methods in related to
resources and project management, quality control, system implementation
and support methodologies.

Together with our extensive business domain knowledge in human
resources, information management, procurement handling and retail
solutions management, C&T is committed to providing all our clients with
best-of-breed software products and high quality system development and
related services and, putting all these together, to building a better world
with Information Technology for all of us.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman) REB(EE)
Cheung Wai Lam (Chief Executive Officer) SRAE TR (TTICAEZL)
Leung King San, Sunny RS

Ng Kwok Keung R 58
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHITES
Ha Shu Tong R

Lee Kwok On, Matthew ZTH%L

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TR
COMPANY SECRETARY NAMWE

Ng Kwok Keung RE R
AUDITORS %

Ernst & Young LK FT RN E T
Certified Public Accountants WEEEE

22/F, CITIC TOWER B

1 Tim Mei Avenue IR

Central B

Hong Kong RiEANE2E
PRINCIPAL BANKER FEAREIT
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited BB LESEZRITER AR
1 Queen’s Road Central BB

Central IR

Hong Kong ERRNEF IR
REGISTRATION OFFICE TSR
Clarendon House Clarendon House

2 Church Street 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11 Hamilton HM11
Bermuda Bermuda

M REGEEERAR T \FFRH



1.1983457
0.0981243
- 1.0128639
4 0.9812652 1.3478651

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEER(E)

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Level 10, Cyberport 2
100 Cyberport Road
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
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Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.ctil.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t-HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—F-mE —FB-hF —B-R"F —FT—tF =ZB-N\F

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million
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il Al bRl il AL
Basic earnings per share BREKRZF
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Dividends per share BRRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

As a result of improved business performance of both Application
Software!” and Solutions Services? businesses, the Group's overall revenue
rose by HK$27.5 million, or 10.8% to HK$281.4 million (2017: HK$253.9
million). The gross profit of the Group also soared by HK$16.4 million,
or 11.5% to HK$159.9 million while the gross profit margin was slightly
increased to 56.8% (2017: 56.5%).

While there were increases in the bank interest income and revaluation
gain from investment properties, the increment in non-operating incomes
was offset by the reduced tax refund received from the PRC operation and
valuation loss in financial assets.

In line with increase in assessable profits, income tax expenses also
increased by 10.19% to HKS$7.2 million (2017: HK$6.5 million) compared with
last year.

With the abovementioned, the Group's consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders increased by 25.2% to HK$68.0 million (2017: HK$54.3
million). The basic earnings per share also lifted by 24.2% to 27.85 HK cents
(2017:22.43 HK cents).

In view of improved business performance and positive cash inflow from
operations, the Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of
12 HK cents (2017: a final dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of
5 HK cents) per ordinary share. Counting the interim dividend of 9 HK cents
(2017: an interim dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of 3 HK
cents) being paid together with these proposed dividends, the Group's full
year dividend payout reached 21 HK cents.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

The Group's Application Software! business managed to maintain its
momentum to deliver a double-digit growth in both revenue and profit
contributions for the reporting year.

The Group's Human Resources Management Software (“HRMS”) business
kept expanding its customer base and successfully acquired new orders
from customers in various industries. The management is particularly
contented to see the newly launched Work Force Management (“WFM")
module has received exciting response from the market and concluded
new orders from a wide spectrum of customers, including a world-class
air cargo terminal, an industry leader in the construction and foundation
design and a prestigious Michelin awarded Chinese culinary group. The
rising trend of new customers’ adoption of the Group’s HRMS cloud services
during the reporting year is also encouraging for our business expansion in
novel markets.

The Group is committed to not only developing the leading HRMS
products, but also uplifting its customer support with best practices of
the industry. During the reporting year, the Group’s HRMS products and
services received a number of awards and recognitions from the industry
and the Group’s HRMS operating subsidiary in Hong Kong being granted
the I1SO 20000-1:2011 certification by the International Organisation for
Standardisation ("ISO") had successfully completed the first external audit.

Following the successful launch of WFM modules, the Group's software R&D
team is now working on the next generation Human Capital Management
("HCM") platform that would cover the full lifecycle from recruitment, on-
boarding, employee and manager self-service, talent management and
workforce planning to HR data analytics. Built on an open platform, the
newly developed HCM is seamlessly integrated with our existing HRMS
products. It can also be integrated with other products and services to form
other eco-systems easily. The capability of diversified integration enables
C&T HCM to serve our clients as a front-end portal beyond just traditional
HRMS needs and truly achieve our goal to provide a multi-region, multi-tier,
multi-vendor, one-landscape staff portal.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(HE)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

With the strong market position and the positive market acceptance of
our WFM products and HRMS cloud services as well as new development
in HCM, the management foresees that the growth for the Group’s HRMS
business will be sustainable in the coming year.

Built on new major contracts signed in the first half of the year and the
ongoing service and maintenance orders, the revenue of the Group's
Enterprise Retail Management Software (“ERMS”) business recorded double-
digit growth during the reporting year. Apart from focusing on the delivery
of existing orders, including upgrade projects for an international brand and
a local major community benefactor, the management will explore ways to
expand its clientele in ERMS in order to achieve another year of solid results.
To ensure the best user experience, the Group’s ERMS has also enhanced
its mobile point-of-sale (MPOS) system with intuitive interface design and
industry-specific micro-operations.

The revenue and profit contributed by the Group's Enterprise Procurement
Management Software (“EPMS”) business were materially improved with
various new orders acquired during the year. The management is delighted
to report that EPMS related cloud service income will significantly increase
in the coming year following the successful implementation of these new
orders from customers including a major energy supplier and one of the
note issuing banks in Hong Kong.

Despite the revenue of the Group's Enterprise Information Management
Software ("EIMS") business was affected by the delay in contract conclusion
in early 2018, the management is glad to report that the performance of the
business has successfully rebounded with the conclusion of various new
orders in the second half of the year. In particular, the Group’s EIMS was
awarded a project from the Public Security Forces Affairs Bureau of Macau
("DSFSM") to upgrade and expand their existing EIMS data management
application followed by maintenance services.

To further strengthen the management bandwidth and accelerate the
business development, the Group has recruited a senior executive with
strong experience in software and solution fields to take charge of the
Group's ERMS, EPMS and EIMS businesses from 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services

With smoother delivery of the projects left over from the previous year and
conclusion of various new orders, the revenue and profit contributions of
the Group's Solutions and Integration Services businesses rose by 9.9% and
22.5%, respectively.

Leveraging the second 10-year services contract (the “Contract”) of
the Customer Care and Billing System ("CCBS”) for the Water Supplies
Department under the HKSAR Government (the “Government”), the
Group continued to provide Managed Services®? and engage in certain
enhancements of CCBS under the Contract as scheduled. According to
the latest work plan, the related enhancements would be continued in the
coming 12 to 18 months with the peak demand of resources. Consistent
with last year's practice, the development costs of HK$10.4 million incurred
during the reporting year had been capitalised as deferred development
costs.

Apart from those mentioned in the interim results announcement, the
Development Services®? business continued to secure new orders from
both the Government and commercial enterprises, including Education
Bureau, Department of Justice and Marine Department of the Government.
In addition, momentum is gained in security services under the Standing
Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 4 (SOA-QPS4) contract of
the Government and more order backlog is built.

In order to provide a clearer business delineation, the Group's BPO®!
business has been integrated with the Solutions Services business and
grouped under the Solutions and Integration Services business. The
performance of the related business was slightly improved during the
reporting year.

The performance of the Group's Integration Services business in PRC
remained stable during the reporting year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(HE)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

e-Service and related business
The revenue and profit contributions as well as the market share of the
Group's GETS¥ business remained stable during the reporting year.

In addition to the Government's contract renewal of our GETS services for
another six years, the management is glad to announce that the business
has collaborated with Hongkong Post to provide traders with paper-to-
electronic trade declaration services through designated post offices
across Hong Kong, effective 1 January 2019. This collaboration has not
only materially expanded the coverage of related services from 41 service
counters to 64 (covering the 23 post offices located in Hong Kong Island,
Kowloon and New Territories), but also raised relevant revenue expectations
in the years to come.

Investments

Due to the decrease in fair value of the on hand financial assets, the Group's
investment segment recorded a decrease in the profit of 12.0% to HK$6.9
million (2017: HKS7.8 million).

PROSPECT

The global economy will be full of uncertainties in 2019. Leveraging its
strong customer base and growing cloud services income with strong
recurring nature, the management is optimistic about the company's
performance in the near future. Looking ahead, the Group will remain
committed to the development of the Application Software business as
well as the Solutions Services business, and seize opportunity in acquisition
of similar business with synergy in order to accelerate its growth.

At the end of 2018, the Group was honoured to be the first Main Board listed
IT software and service company ever winning the Hong Kong Corporate
Governance Excellence Award® at the Hong Kong Corporate Governance
Excellence Awards. The award not only showed our commitment to good
corporate governance, but also reaffirmed the Group's holistic, sustainable
corporate governance approach that values our people, the environment
and the society.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

Footnotes:

(1]

[2]

The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of application
software and e-business services for enterprises including (i) the provision of
enterprise application software with implementation and ongoing support
services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise Procurement Management,
Enterprise Information Management and Enterprise Retail Management (collectively
the “Application Software”); and (ii) the Government Electronic Trading Services
("GETS"), cloud services and other related value added services (collectively the
"e-Service and related business”).

The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i) Development
Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and application software
development; (i) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/
infrastructure outsourcing services; (i) business process outsourcing ("BPO")
services; and (iv) Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-going support services.

The Group's BPO business comprises the provision of services for the operations
and support of specific business functions or processes of customers.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from the
Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic Trading Services
for processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group'’s GETS License
was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of additional six years until the end
of 2024.

The annual Hong Kong Corporate Governance Excellence Awards are jointly
organised by the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies (CHKLC) and the
Centre for Corporate Governance and Financial Policy (CCGFP) of Hong Kong
Baptist University to encourage improvement in corporate governance of
listed companies in Hong Kong through recognising those with outstanding
achievements in upholding shareholder rights, compliance, integrity, fairness,
responsibility, accountability, transparency, board independence and leadership,
and corporate social responsibility.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(HE)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

Attributed from the improved performance of both Application Software
and Solutions Services businesses, the Group's turnover and gross profit
for the reporting period increased by 10.8% to HK$281.4 million (2017:
HKS$253.9 million) and 11.5% to HK$159.9 million (2017: HKS$143.5 million),
respectively.

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other
income and gains, net, foreign exchange differences,
net and fair value gains/(losses), net)

Non-operating incomes and gains (included other income and gains,
net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains/(losses), net)
improved by 8.3% to HK$14.4 million (2017: HK$13.3 million). The growth
was primarily mixture of the movements as highlighted below.

Interestincome

Bank interest income increased by 89.0% to HKS$7.3 million resulting from
the increase in available cash amount together with better average interest
yield on the deposits.

Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties and financial
assets

The investment properties generated a fair value gain of HK$4.4 million
(2017: HK$3.6 million) to the Group. The gain was 22.7% or HK$0.8 million
better than last year. On the contrary, the financial assets reported a minor
mark-to-market loss of HK$0.4 million in 2018 (2017: gain of HK$1.4 million).

VAT refund

In the absence of VAT refund for sales of software license in prior years, the
refund amount was dropped significantly by 60.0% to HK$1.7 million (2017:
HKS4.4 million).

Expenses
The Group's overall expenses in general had not been changed in a material
manner except the inflation had caused a mild increase.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Income tax expense
In line with increase in assessable profits, the income tax expense increased
by 10.1% or 0.7 million to HK$7.2 million (2017: HK$6.5 million).

The Group's overall effective tax rate for the tax charge in 2018 was around
9.5%, whereas in 2017 was 10.7%. The effective tax rate was lower than
the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because several types of onshore
incomes/gain, including dividend, bank interest income and fair value gain
from the revaluation of investment properties, were not subject to the
Hong Kong profits tax. Besides, the effective tax rate had further been driven
down by the recognition of deferred tax credit arising from amortisation of
other intangible assets.

Net profit

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders increased to HK$68.0
million (2017: HK$54.3 million) while the net profit margin (profit for the
period attributable to shareholders divided by the revenue) rose to 24.2%
(2017: 21.4%). The increase was in line with the improvement in revenue as
well as gross profit as discussed.

Non-current assets

The Group's non-current assets as at 31 December 2018 slightly increased
by 3.8% to HK$276.9 million from HK$266.7 million as at 31 December 2017.
The change was primarily arrived after charging of amortisation of other
intangible assets and depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
crediting of deferred development costs arising from a solution project,
appreciation of investment properties held and additions of fixed assets
during the reporting year.

The Group reviewed and considered no impairment indication to the
carrying value of goodwill during the year under review.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(HE)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current assets

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2018 rose by 3.8% to
HK$354.4 million (31 December 2017: HK$341.4 million). The increment was
mainly caused by the increase in cash and bank balances, trade receivables
and contract assets (previously classified under due from contract
customers) generated from normal business operations.

The Group maintains strict control over its trade receivables and considered
that the outstanding amounts (net of impairment provision) as at the
reporting date were all recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current liabilities
In line with increase in contract liabilities (previously classified under due to
contract customers and deferred revenue), the Group's current liabilities as
at 31 December 2018 increased slightly to HK$140.6 million (31 December
2017: HK$139.9 million).

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets of Applications Services business increased in line with
the increase in contract assets and trade and other receivables while the
segment liabilities of the business increased in line with the increase in
contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services business increased
owing to the increase in deferred development costs while the segment
liabilities dropped with the decrease in deferred revenue classified under
contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Investments business increased due to the appreciation
in value of investment properties held.

Equity

Total equity as at 31 December 2018 increased by 5.5% to HK$478.1 million
(2017: HKS$453.0 million). The change was mainly due to the profit earned in
2018 offset by the purchase of shares held under the restricted share award
scheme and the dividends payment for 2017 final and 2018 interim results.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged an investment property
with a fair value of HK$64.2 million (31 December 2017: HK$60.0 million),
listed debt and equity securities of HK$12.7 million (31 December 2017:
HKS$13.4 million) and bank balances of HK$2.1 million (31 December 2017:
HKS$1.1 million) to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/
performance bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the
Company in aggregate of HK$112.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$106.8
million) of which HK$23.2 million (31 December 2017: HK$20.5 million) have
been utilised as at 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit of HK$2.1 million) was HK$255.5 million (31
December 2017: HK$246.5 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless, the
Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely and
hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to minimise the
exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2017: Nil). The Group's current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liability was 2.5 (31 December 2017: 2.4) and the gearing ratio,
representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 24.3% (31 December
2017:25.5%).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(HE)

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic salary,
discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees of the
Group to reward their performance and contributions.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 357 full time employees and
5 contract-based employees (31 December 2017: 327 full time employees
and 6 contract-based employees).

As at 31 December 2018, the Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations
as well as retain them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the annual report, the Group has no significant
investments held as at 31 December 2018.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the reporting year and up to the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31
December 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the annual report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2018.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE (R

FINAL DIVIDEND REIR B

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 12 HK EEeEFMEHE T \F+_A=+—H
cents (2017: a final dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of 5 HK FFERNESREBRRARS 2BWL(ZF
cents) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2018. —tF  RERE7ABWRERNRESHEL) °
CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS EERERNBFEREFE

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 12 HK cents (2017: a EZTEEBRNRERESRLT AR 128 (=
final dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of 5 HK cents) per T—+F KRB 7B R BRI E 5L -
ordinary share payable to shareholders whose names appear on the AR EKAR_ZE—NFAAR(EH=)
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2019. The BIARRABREREM 2 RRIRN - REERE
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 24 May BREERRBFRAGING LREZRRE Y
2019 to Wednesday, 29 May 2019 (both days inclusive) for the purpose M ARARKBHE_E-NAFREA-TMA(EH
of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. AEE-NFRA-TNLA(ESH=) (BR
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM to be held on MABRBEN) HEEEMERODBEELFE -
Wednesday, 29 May 2019, all transfer documents, accompanied by the REFEREER_ZE—NFRA=-+NLB(E
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company's Share H=)BrI e RRBAFARSYRE LEE TG
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s BPXHEREEREVER-_ZE—-NAFHA
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, ZH=-HEHE) TFER=TORRERA
23 May 2019. In addition, the Register of Members of the Company will be AlZRMNBEELREEEERRFFRA AR
closed from Tuesday, 4 June 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019 (both days BPERFE HttW AEBEFRER 183K
inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the EBRMP L2 I BEERE ERE B
proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, EARAREZRR S - AREHE_T—AN
all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged FRAEB (R ZEZZE—NFARAB(E
with the Company's Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration H=) (EERMAXBELEN) BREEHERMD
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 June 2019. During such periods, no BEFELFE - ATARERER LR
share transfer will be effected. The final dividend will be distributed on or RE - FERPXHEREERESNEANR_E
about Wednesday, 19 June 2019 to shareholders whose names appear on —NWFARAA=ZB(EH—) TFOUKE=1T5a1X
the Register of Members of the Company on Wednesday, 5 June 2019. ERARNBILBRNBFPFELEEESEEERA
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(HE)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors of the Company. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018 with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management and internal controls and financial reporting matters related
to the preparation of the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2018.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting year.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 57, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir. Ng
graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science from the
University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984 and has over 30
years of experience in [T industry. Before establishing the Company, Ir. Ng
held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-Packard Asia Pacific
Limited. and Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited. Ir. Ng is the Honorary Fellow of
Vocational Training Council and the Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Ir. Ng was also the awardees of “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong”, “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award
of Hong Kong” and “Directors of the Year Awards”.

Ir. Ng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Leung King San, Sunny.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 55, the Group's Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ"),
is in charge of the overall business operation of the Group. Mr. Cheung
has over 30 years of experience in IT and consulting business ranging from
software development to enterprise solutions implementation and is one of
the founders of Y&A Professional Services Limited. (the “Y&A”"). Mr. Cheung
joined the Group in 2006 when Y&A became a subsidiary of the Group.
Before Y&A, he held various consulting positions in IBM in Hong Kong and
Australia. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor Degree in Computer Science in 1985 and an Executive
Master Degree in Business Administration in 2011. Mr. Cheung is currently
studying the Doctor of Business Administration degree in the City University
of Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 57, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung has 30 years of experience
in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM and
its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration in 1983.

Mr. Leung is the brother-in-law of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 45, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and the Secretary of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, finance and business advisory. Before joining
the Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company
and worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 70, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has involved
in the financial industry for over 40 years and has substantial experience in
corporate finance and corporate development.

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, aged 58, PhD, joined the Board in
1998. He is Vice-President (Development & External Relations) and Chair
professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the City University
of Hong Kong. Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong
Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation. Professor Lee is an
independent non-executive director of China Goldjoy Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1282). He holds the following UK. university degrees: BEng (first-class
honours) in electronic engineering & MBA in business studies (University
of Sheffield); Msc in computation (University of Oxford); PhD in computer
science (University of Manchester); LLB and LLM in commercial & corporate
law (University of London). He is a charter engineer of the UK Engineering
Council and a professional member of the British Computer Society.
Professor Lee has been admitted as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong and
England & Wales.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 65, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants since 1987. He is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code:
116) and holds independent non-executive directorship in six other listed
companies namely, China SCE Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Texhong Textile Group Limited (Stock Code:
2678), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code: 1666)
and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William, aged 53, the Group’s Deputy CEO, joined the
Group in 2018 and focuses on consolidating the Solutions & Integration
Services and driving further development of the business in Hong Kong and
the Greater China region. Mr. Poon has over 30 years of experience in the
IT industry and has held various leadership roles in renowned businesses
of technology solutions and outsourcing services across the region.
Graduating from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Computer Studies in 1988, Mr. Poon received an Executive Master
of Business Administration Degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2001.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, Steve, aged 53, the Group's Senior Vice President,
of is in charge of the corporate development as well as Application
Software business units of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998
and has over 30 years of IT experience in sales and business development.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Computer Studies in 1988 and received a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999.

Mr. Kwok Ka Chun, Erik, aged 40, the Group'’s Chief Technology Officer,
joined the Group in 2018 and is in charge of the Research & Development
division focusing on the Group’s software products. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Kwok had worked in both Canada and Mainland China where he
led multiple R&D teams across Canada, China and India working on cross-
industry software products and vertical solutions. In addition to building
R&D teams and products, he was responsible for sales development
activities and project delivery for multinational corporations. Mr. Kwok
graduated from the Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Computing Science.

Ms. Ng Ka Yan, Karen, aged 42, the Group’s General Manager of enterprise
software, leads the operations and growth of the Group’s enterprise
software businesses. Joining the Group in 2019, Ms. Ng brought in 20 years
of extensive business experience from international software and solution
companies. Ms. Ng graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor Degree of Arts and a Master Degree of Science.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code provision
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as stipulated in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the reporting year.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that its corporate governance practices are similar to those provided in the
CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”):
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the three INEDs is a
professional accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement of
the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three year in accordance with the
Company's bye-laws and the CG Code. Retiring directors are eligible for re-
election at the annual general meeting at which they retire. Any director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject to re-election at the next annual
general meeting of the Company. Separate resolutions have been proposed
for the election of each director.

Board nomination policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find individuals of high
integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their chosen
fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good judgement, and
to provide practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will
be assessed in the context of the then-current composition in the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this assessment,
the Nomination Committee will, in connection with its assessment and
recommendation of candidates for director, consider diversity (including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and length of service)
and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then-current and
anticipated future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a
balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.

The Company shall review and reassess the nomination policy and its
effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Nomination process
The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any vacancy on the Board
has been created or is expected on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying
director candidates, including recommendations from Board members,
management and professional search firms. All director candidates,
including incumbents and candidates nominated by the shareholders,
are evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon the director
qualifications. While director candidates will be evaluated on the same
criteria through review of resume, personal interview and performance of
background checks. The Nomination Committee retains the discretion to
establish the relative weighing of such criteria, which may vary based on
the composition, gender, age, knowledge, skills and experiences of the
collective Board rather than on the individual candidate for the purpose
of diversity perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Group's
business.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications at a
minimum to be required of any Board members in recommending to the
Board potential new board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

broad experience in business and the ability to provide insights and
practical wisdom based on their experience and expertise;

the highest professional and personal ethics and in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

with sufficient time to carry out their duties effectively and to make
contributions to the Company’s success and such other factors
as it may deem are in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders; and

ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and to assist and support management of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company noted that that people from different backgrounds and with
different professional and life experience are likely to approach problems
in different ways and accordingly, members of the Board with diverse
backgrounds will bring different concerns and questions to the table, and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions when
deciding on corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board's composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual basis by the
Nomination Committee to ensure that the Board has the approximate
mix of expertise and experience, and collectively possesses the necessary
core competence for informed decision making and effective functioning.
The Company adopted its own Board Diversity Policy and recognises the
benefits of having diversity in the composition of the Board.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among
other things, the gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of each director, against
the Company's business model and specific needs.

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors and is
characterised by great diversity, whether considered in terms of age, length
of service, educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERKE (HE)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) E=g (&)
Composition of the diversified Board ZRtEESENAR
Aged group Length of service
EEAR PR % 4 2
Less than More than
Name of Director 40to 49 50to 59 60 to 69 70to79 7 Years 7 Years
EEpg 40E505  50F59%  60E69m  70E79h PRIEF SR1F
Ng Cheung Shing RER v v
Cheung Wai Lam RER v 4
Leung King San, Sunny REF v v
Ng Kwok Keung RE® v v
Ha Shu Tong BRix v/ v
Lee Kwok On, Matthew FEE v /
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE v v
Educational background Professional experience
YEER EELR
Accounting Management/
Name of Director Accountancy Law IT/Others | and finance Law Others
AR/ a5t R/
Espsg a7 EE Hity REw y Hity
Ng Cheung Shing RER v/ v
Cheung Wai Lam RER v v
Leung King San, Sunny REA v/ v/
Ng Kwok Keung RER v v
Ha Shu Tong EHZ v /
Lee Kwok On, Matthew TEH% v v
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE v v
The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board’s ARG Z b BERERZ B - &
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain ReEESg s B RERFRKTEZEEER
high standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue to REZ - ARNABEBESRERFTEZ RN
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving ERBEBUWKERARNB TN HERTER
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate with HOIRRAZEZEEZ KT -

regard to the specific needs of the Company from time to time.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Directors and Senior EEVBEEENENFOENAIEERSR
Management” section on pages 19 to 21. Two executive directors, Mr. Ng ERE|—f WMBEWATEERRBLEMRES
Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, are brother-in-law. Save as FEERRAB - RFBEEIN BEFGNE
disclosed, there is no relationship between each of the Board members. ZEWERAIER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group's overall strategy, annual
budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement of directors,
significant contracts and transactions as well as other significant policies
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the daily operations and
administration to the Group’s management.

According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO approved by the Board, the Chairman is mainly responsible for long-
term strategic development of the Group as well as the operation of the
Board, to make sure that the Board is run in the best interests of the Group
and all the Board meetings are effectively planned and carried out. CEO
mainly focuses on the business operations of the Group, assists the Board to
formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are implemented
successfully. CEO is fully responsible to the Board for overall business
operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent access
to the Company’s senior management to facilitate them to make informed
decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are allowed to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges the
overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board collectively.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management.
The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under the relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group's performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole to discharge their duties.

During the year, all directors, namely Mr. Ng Cheung Shing, Mr. Cheung
Wai Lam, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, Mr. Ha Shu Tong,
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development, including
the training provided by the Company on 16 November 2018, to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (H)

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Board
held at least four regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval to
discuss the overall strategy as well as the operational matters and financial
performance of the Group. Attendance of each director at the Board
meetings is set out below:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Investment Committee and the Risk
Management Committee formed under the Board, with each performing
different functions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999 and during the
reporting period, the three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee
Kwok On, Matthew, Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen are the members of the
committee. Mr. Ting was elected as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation of
dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective risk management and internal control systems;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management'’s
responses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice every year. Attendance of

each director at the meeting is set out below:

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed and
provided supervision over the Group's financial reporting processes, risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed interim and annual
results of the Group and met with the internal and external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and two executive directors
namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is
currently the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and the terms of their service contracts;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors;

to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options to
eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and share
option scheme of the Company;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

FHEEE (B)

RESESUEEL EEEAINTEER
BRERARY HWEBAREREA R
26
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BRI ERRATEERSREEAB
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DHERZFRERS QRN FRE
HEAEMGER -2 BETFQXIFLAE T
HBZ &

appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and

BRTAEFHEETAREA LI GSHE
BEEAE 2B -

to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in
deciding his own remunerations.

FHZESBFARLBIT RER -BEF
hEERZBEREINT

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year.
Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible

to attend
HESBRRE
A R E
Executive directors: BITES

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing REBLEE 3/3
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REHEE 3/3

Independent non-executive directors: BIYFHITES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BEREEE 3/3
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew ETE e e 3/3
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TREEA 3/3

FA HFHEERETZIEFEERIAEHE
ZHOTEERRREEEFMBR BEERSE
ZEBKE BN TESZHMAES
SREHERE R R A LI ERER D R 8R
BERSEERBED -

During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
included the review of the Group's remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management, determined their levels of remuneration,
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of INEDs and
approved the grant of shares to eligible participants pursuant to the share
award scheme.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out
below:
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FMEES (H)

BEERESRELEBEZFHH
BREBEEEERTREBISETRIMG  BEZ
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Number of Individuals
A

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

Further particulars in relation to directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of the three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee
Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and two executive
directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr.
Ha is currently the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company'’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives, and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually;

to assess the independence of INEDs and to ensure at least one-third
of the Board should be INEDs; in that the Nomination Committee
should always have in mind the factors set out in the Listing Rules;

= 21,000,000 7T 1
1,000,001 /& 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 1
1,500,001 78 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an
INED at the general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall set out
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting:

the process used for identifying the individual and why the
Board believes the individual should be elected and the
reasons why it considers the individual to be independent;

ii. if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or more)
listed company directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to the
Board;

iii.  the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

iv.  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board;

to determine the policy for nomination of directors. The policy for
the nomination of directors of the Nomination Committee shall be
disclosed in the annual report of the Company;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:
Mr.Ng Cheung Shing
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

During the year, the Nomination Committee determined and disclosed
the policy for nomination of directors, the nomination procedures and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend candidates for directorship, reviewed the policy on board
diversity, assessed the independence of INEDs and made recommendations
to the Board on reappointment of directors of the Company.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012 and comprises
of an INED, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, and an executive director, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing. Mr. Ng is currently the chairman of the Investment Committee. The
Investment Committee is responsible for executing investment guidelines
approved by the Board, monitoring the performance of the investments
and proposing investment strategies to the Board. During the year, the
Investment Committee reported the performance of investments and
reviewed the investment strategies with all directors in the Board meeting.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 17 August 2016
and comprises of one INED, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong and three executive
directors namely, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam and
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung. Mr. Leung is currently the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee include:

to review the Group's risk management (“‘RM”) and internal control
("IC") strategies, policies and guidelines and submit them to the Audit
Committee for approval;

to review the Group’s risk framework and approved risk policies,
standards and limits within the overall appetite and tolerance
approved by the Board;

to review the Group's processes for determining risk appetite
tolerance, monitoring compliance with approved risk tolerance levels
and policies and the resultant action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the Group’s compliance policies and submit them to the
Board and/or Audit Committee for approval;

to review the Group's key risks and submit to the Audit Committee
for approval half-yearly;

to report to the Audit Committee that, to the best of the RM
Committee’s belief, the disclosures made in the annual report on its
activities, the risk governance and related sections are fair, balanced
and understandable;

to consider issues raised by external auditors, the Audit Committee
or any member of the Board who has lodged a request for a meeting;
and

to liaise with the chairman of the Audit Committee to determine on
a case by case basis which RM Committee takes responsibility for
undertaking deep dive reviews and keeping the Audit Committee
updated on any relevant findings from reviews requested.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

Independent non-executive director:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

During the year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the Group’s risk
framework and key risks, RM and IC strategies, policies and guidelines and
submitted them to the Audit Committee for approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with
at least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmation, the Company still considers all of the INEDs
to be independent.

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board. Through active
participation in board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
INEDs make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR WHO
HAS SERVED FOR MORE THAN NINE YEARS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen have served as INEDs for more than nine years. The future
appointment of these three INEDs without the approval by way of passing
a separate resolution of the shareholders is regarded as a deviation from
Code Provision A4.3 of the CG Code.

To comply with this CG Code Provision, all these three INEDs had retired
at the previous annual general meeting of the Company and offered
themselves for re-election.

The Board is of the opinion that all these three directors remain
independent notwithstanding the length of their services and believes that
their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group'’s business and their
general business acumen continue to generate significant contribution to
the Board, the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The Company's
circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company in April 2019
will contain the biographical information of Mr. Ha Shu Tong and the
detailed reasons behind the Board’s recommendation of his continuing
appointment as an INED.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company'’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its shareholders
through a number of channels, which includes annual report, interim report,
announcements and circulars. The latest information of the Company and
the Group together with the published documents are also available on the
Company's website.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served.

The annual general meeting in 2018 (“the AGM") was held on 23 May 2018.
All directors and the Company’s external auditor attended the AGM.

According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the "Act”)
and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act
for putting forward such proposal at a general meeting.

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Senior Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company'’s constitutional documents during
the year of review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

During the reporting year, the management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and position of the
Group put forward to the Board for approval. The directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 63 to 70.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal controls of the Company, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions and particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting and financial
reporting function. The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, is required to assess the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
Appropriate policies and control procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with,
reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and
key risks that may impact on the Group's performance are appropriately
identified and managed. These control procedures are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
such procedures can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or losses.

Effective risk management is a fundamental part of the Group’s business
strategy. Recognising and managing risk is central to the business and to
protect the shareholders’ interests and value. The Company operates within
overall guidelines and specific parameters set by the Board. Each transaction
is comprehensively analysed to understand the risks involved. Responsibility
for managing risks lies initially with the business functions concerned,
working within the overall strategy and risk tolerance established by the
Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group's operations and financial performance. The Board also reviews
the risks to the assets and operations of the Company, and acts upon any
comments from the internal and external auditors. The Board considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing business risk. The
management also meets at least monthly to review the operations of the
Group and discuss any identified issues.
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ERERERE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Key risks, control measures and management actions are continually
identified, reviewed and monitored by the management as part of the
Group's enterprise wide risk management framework. The internal auditor
assists and guides the management in the formulation of risk policies and
processes to effectively identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The
management has established a risk identification and management process.
The risk profiles are reported to the Risk Management Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis to highlight changes in the risk
assessment, quantitative and qualitative factors affecting the inherent risks
and effectiveness of respective controls. The ownership of these risks lies
with the respective business functions with stewardship residing with the
Board. Action plans to manage the risks are continually being monitored
and refined by the management and the Board. The internal auditor
conducts audits to review the risk management framework and processes
and assess the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls. Any material non-
compliance or lapses in internal controls together with corrective measures
are reported to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee.

In performing its audit of the financial statements, the external auditors
perform tests over operating effectiveness of certain controls that they
intend to rely on which are relevant to the Group's preparation of its
financial statements. The external auditors report any significant deficiencies
in such internal controls to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Company, from time to time, the Board and/or the
management will engage professional third parties to assess and comment
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls and, where appropriate, recommendations will be adopted and
enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be made.

Based on the framework established and the reviews conducted by the
internal and external auditors, the Board opines, with the concurrence of the
Audit Committee, that there are adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems in place within the Group in addressing
material financial, operational, compliance and information technology
control risks in its current business environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Risk management framework

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and other regulations. This framework was built around a
structure that enables the Board and the management to discharge their
risk management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation as
well as checks and balances. These responsibilities included defining risk
appetite in accordance with the Group's business strategies and objectives,
formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those strategies, and
establishing procedures and limits for the approval, control, monitoring and
remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the highest
level of the Group's risk governance structure under the Board. Members
included one INED and three executive directors. The Risk Management
Committee had direct involvements in formulating the Group's risk appetite,
and determined the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake
with reference to its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market
conditions and regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group's
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures that
the management adopted in executing its business functions. The Risk
Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk management
framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks are performed
according to established policies and with appropriate resources.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Inside information
Regarding procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorized use of non-public or inside information;

has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media. These policies and guidelines also
identify who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their
responsibilities for communications with stakeholders; and

has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation
of the policy and the relevant trainings are also provided.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The
remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group
in 2018 is summarised as follows:
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Bt afian

HK$000
FET

Auditing services EZR 1,320
Non-auditing services (which included agreed upon procedures and EEZRE (B
other professional services) WIERF M E A
HEERD) 386
Total At 1,706
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time employee of the Group. Mr.
Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional trainings during the reporting year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of EXREWREEE
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the

Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group's future business development and important
events affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31
December 2018 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”

on pages 6 to 18 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31 December
2018 using key performance indicators is provided in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report, and other key performance

indicators are set out below.

Strategies

R

Maintain the Group's liquidity for future development

FREASENESRBIEAERKER

Enrich and enhance the Group’s product portfolio

LEMEAAEENERAES

Keep the Group's staff turnover rate with
no material adverse change

RRAKEE TRk %8 HEATHE
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs")

BREXERE(BEREXER]D
Net cash flows from operating activities in 2018: HK$58.4 million
(2017: HK$55.2 million)
B’\ T /\EE’J%«%/EEME S MFE ¢ 58,400,000 7T
—-£4F 1 55,200,000 7T)

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2018: HK$255.5 million
(31 December 2017: HK$246.5 million)
RZZE-N\F+_A=+—HNRERFRHEELEE : 255500000
BT (ZE—tF+TZA=1+—8 : 246,500,000 7T)

Number of new product/module launched: 8 (2017: 10)

HEm,/ BAEMEE : 8(ZF—1LF :10)

Staff turnover rate, representing number of resigned and terminated staff
during the year divided by number of staff of the Group as at the year
end date, in 2018: 26% (2017: 25%)

RZZE-N\FHEIRAR (THRF AR KBRS T AZKIA
REEBAEBEBETARGHE) : 260 (=F— £ 45 : 25%)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(E)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are discussed in this section.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below, which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but which could become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can
never be eliminated completely due to inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Also, risks may be accepted for strategic reasons or if
it is deemed not cost-effective to mitigate them.

Strategic Risk

The business strategy may require the Group to develop its business both
organically and through new business combinations, strategic investments
and acquisitions. If market conditions change or for any other reasons, the
Group may decide to delay, modify or forgo some aspects of its growth
strategies.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding
promptly to market changes within the industry it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the Group's business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The Group has been looking into different kinds of business and investment
opportunities to broaden the revenue sources of the Group in order to
manage the associated risk and to create greater value for the shareholders.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group's operations and financial performance. The Board also considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing the strategic risk as
well as the business risk. The management meets at least monthly to review
the business developments of the Group and keeps the Board informed on
any issues identified.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
Responsibility for managing operational risks in the Group rests with every
function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group will continuously
identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk issues
to the Board and/or senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Technology Obsolescence

The Group's operations depend on its ability to innovate and the successful
deployment of continuously evolving technologies, particularly its response
to technological and industry developments, as well as its ability to foresee
and/or rapidly adapt to the emergence of disruptive technologies. The
Group cannot be certain that technologies will be developed in time to
meet changing market conditions, that they will perform according to
expectations or that they will achieve commercial acceptance. The Group
has made relentless efforts in producing and delivering premium products
and high quality services. Looking forward, the Group will continue with its
research and innovation to enrich and enhance its products portfolio.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group's success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability to
attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified managerial,
sales, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical personnel. The
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified personnel,
could materially and adversely affect the Group’s prospects and results of
operations.

The Group recognises the employees as one of our most valuable assets
and will keep on providing competitive remuneration package to motivate
the employees and to attract any suitable candidates in the market. The
Group also regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(E)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various
financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The currency
environment and interest rates cycles may significantly affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group's earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
may be adversely affected by movements in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any depreciation in the Group's
functional currency may affect its net profit margin. The Group closely
monitors the relative foreign exchange positions of its assets and liabilities
and allocates its holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to
minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk, the
Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and
credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its customers. New
customers are subject to credit evaluation while the Group continues to
monitor its existing customers, especially those with repayment issues. Cash
is deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 36 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures in place to ensure that its operations
comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is responsible
to monitor the Group's policies and practices for achieving compliance with
legal and other regulatory requirements, and such policies and practices
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operating units whenever necessary.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has, in all material respects, complied
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's
businesses and operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are valuable assets to the Group. The Group provides equal
employment opportunity and competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. In addition, the Group subsidises employees
to attend job-related training courses to enhance their career progression
and provides occupational health and safety information to employees to
raise their awareness. The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment and it values the health and well-being
of its staff. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is healthy and safe. The
Group provides communications on health and safety matters and other
programmes to employees in order to raise their awareness of such issues
and enhance their related behaviour.

To suppliers and customers, the Group values mutually beneficial long
standing relationships with them by providing high quality services to

customers and developing mutual trust with suppliers.

Details of the Group's trade receivables and trade payables are set out in
notes 18 and 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

There was no material dispute between the Group and its business partners.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(E)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group does not operate in an environmentally sensitive business
and is predominantly service-oriented. However, the Group is committed
to the long term sustainability of the environment and communities in
which it operates. As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. The Group also strives for a
greener future by eco-friendly practices in various aspects of our operations.
Efficient and effective use of energy and resources are encouraged in the
operation and management level of the Group. “Green Guidelines and
News” are formulated and launched on a continuous basis via intranet or
email to promote the concept of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” and to arouse
the employee’s awareness of the importance of environmental protection.

The Company will issue Environmental, Social and Governance Report in a
separate manner and publish the report on the Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website (www.ctil.com).

DONATIONS

The Group's charitable donations during the year amounted to HK$11,000.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 71 to 206.

An interim dividend of 9 HK cents per ordinary share was paid on 21
September 2018. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 12 HK cents per ordinary share to shareholders whose name appear on
the Company's register of members on 5 June 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 208. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED
SHARES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
awarded restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 27, 28 and 29 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 1,486,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the year was approximately HK$4,410,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$71,122,000, of which HK$29,599,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$53,104,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(E)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 40.7% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 28.6%. Purchases from the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 22.3% of the total value of supplies
purchased and services consumed for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 7.2%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Cheung Wai Lam (Chief Executive Officer)
Leung King San, Sunny

Ng Kwok Keung

Independent non-executive directors:
Ha Shu Tong

Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Ng Cheung
Shing, Leung King San, Sunny and Ha Shu Tong will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company renewed their
appointments with the Company for specific terms of three years but are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the
bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Ha
Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, and as at
the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 21 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of directors
with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the directors’ remuneration is reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee annually.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in or sustain or about the execution of the duties of their office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEWRE(E)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

1.1983457
0.0981243
1.1892656 1.0128659
0.9612662 1.3478651 5 5

EEEN

REARBEERFRAMBIL BB LT
TAEBARR 2R EFNEARDEBHE
B RITHEH

%%E@Hﬁfﬁ&*ﬁ B R 1 2 2 I K

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H FEZFRAR
AIREBABEE (EERBHFRBEKR (TFE
MG RG]) EXVED) 2 B R AR R B
BEARRRBRERZFLIEGRDE 352168
EFEZECMRAEHEIBE ETETAE
FETESRSNFETARITAEARRA R
B Pr 2 s an T

KRAEBERZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SFoREREE

Directly

beneficially
owned

HE
BRES

Name of director

Percentage of
Through the Company’s
controlled

corporation

issued share
capital
(P NG|
BB ERITRE
FEFAR BatE

Ng Cheung Shing REB (@) 4,684,000 114,614,000 119,298,000 4782
Cheung Wai Lam RIER 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 040
Leung King San, Sunny 21 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 041
Ng Kwok Keung RE 8 520,000 - 520,000 021

7,234,000 114,614,000 121,848,000 4884
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS ESERNROREERS 2EERR

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES 2 (&)

(CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: R—EHRBELIERA2FE

Number of shares Percentage of
v 4= the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Classof  beneficially controlled issued
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation share capital
AL ]
BEE ZB BRITRA
Exns HErEEE RAXFZHEE R 12 BB [ §:3 1) ZEE DT Bk
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REB Technologies subsidiary deferred (note fff & (b)) TE A

International ARAlZ EREREET

Limited LN
MBRGERQRA

Notes: MisE -

(a) The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”), () CS. (BVI) Limited 2 2 BB ARIBERIZBR A A
a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled ([ 55 ]) #55 110,000,000 I & fn - REB L ERE
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at FACS. (BVI) Limited Z fE R A& 1T s dliTE =
general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or D2 A EZ R ERE - FICS. BVI) Limited Bl B #E
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings PEEIRE K® F/TEsiEs T =92 —3 A
of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be FTIREE A BEZILELBEEN REE
interested in all shares held by Chao Lien. AR BN BHITSA Y ARG R EEREZ -

(b) The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b) £%3,250,000 f% IS EROEER (D R EBEIS A ©

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the directors had MENEWEREIN R_E—NEFE+_A=+—

registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares H - #iEsEss0{ARa sk E T mEsEE 2k

of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to M ERNT  BEEREBEESNIEENE
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified IS2IEBFREr  IRE LR ITAESETE
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for EXGMEESFRSITHMERNT N2

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. BRI R o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the "Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the "Renewed Date”). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded Shares
for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded Shares will
then be transferred to these employees and directors upon vesting. The
aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award Scheme
throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified to
them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under any other incentive or share option schemes
and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

géiﬁﬂ:(nﬁ)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME AR R0 RE 8 (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the TERE#IEEZZT-NF+ZA=+—HLF
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December ERNZEBETEE T RZE RN BB KA -
2018.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

ABRRBROHA
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category of 1January during during during 31 December Vesting period of fair value
participant 2018 theyear theyear theyear 2018 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SRENA R-B-N% R=B-N% ShmE
il 1% -A-8 FRE%R EREER ERERY T-A=t-B REEBAN REROGEE  FHLYE
HK$
AR
Directors
gz
Ng Cheung Shing - 250,000 - - 250,000 14May 2018 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2023 218
RRE “2-N\% “T-NFRA=THE
TATRA ZRCZEMAZTH
Cheung Wai Lam 100000 - (100,000) - - 14 January 2014 31 December 2014 to 31 December 2018 188
KRR Z2-mE ZB-mETZA=T-RE
—-AtmA Z2-\TZA=T-H
Cheung Wai Lam 200,000 - (50,000 - 150000 14 Qctober 2016 30 September 2017 to 30 September 2021 28
KRR ZT5E “EFARZTHE
tATEA ZR-ERA=TH
Cheung Wai Lam - 250,000 - - 250,000 14May 2018 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2023 2183
KRR “2-\% “T-NFRA=THE
TATRA ZRCZEMA=TH
Ng Kwok Keung 50,000 - (50000 - - 28 March 2013 30 April 20140 30 April 2018 145
RE® -3k “T-MEMA=THE
;i DN Z2-/\EMA=1H
Ng Kwok Keung 72,000 - (24,000 - 48,000 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 to 30 April 2020 262
RE% “E-nf “T-REMAZTHE
TAMA ZR-TEMA=TH
Ng Kwok Keung - 250,000 - - 250,000 14May 2018 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2023 218
RE% 2% “E-NFRA=THE
TATRA ZEIZEMATH

422000 750,000 (224/000)

948,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EERRE ()
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME AR R0 R B & (&)
(CONTINUED)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
*EREBRAYA
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category of 1January during during during 31 December Vesting period of fair value
participant 2018 the year theyear the year 2018 Award date Awarded Shares per share
SRENRA it St jimt I3 Shing
il 1] -B-# FRERE FRERR ERERY T-A=t1-H REEBAH RRROGES  THLYE
HK$
AR
Other employees
EftEE
In aggregate 80,000 - (80000) - - 28March 2013 30 April 2014 to 30 Apri 2018 145
Eh Rz “Z-MEMA=TAZ
ZAZtNR “2-/\¥MA=1H
In aggregate 20,000 - (20000 - - 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 to 158
o) 30 September 2018
T ZZ-MENA=TRE
NATZR ZE-\EAAZTH
Inaggregate 117,000 - (39,000 (30000 48000 4May 2015 30 April 2016 to 30 April 2020 262
@t ZZ-1f ZE-RfRAZTHE
TAMA ZECFEMA=TR
In aggregate 9,000 - (24000 - 72000 14Qctober 2016 30 September 2017 to 2483
B 30 September 2021
Ik St E “E-tENR=TRE
TRATHA ZB--ERA=TH
Inaggregate - 1325000 - - 1325000 14 May 2018 30 Apil 20191030 April 203 83
a3t “2-\F Z3-AERASTAZ
TATEA ZRCZEMAZTH

735000 2075000 (387,000) (30,000) 2393000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEWRE(E

FTERRREMAL (EIFALQT
EEYFETBRAR)RRORMA
ARG S

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the following interests of more than 5% of the RZEBE—NF+_A=+—H U TAEXRQA
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in ARBRNEREBERESMNHAEKRIIE3B6IERTE
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to FEBzREZELZMAEARRREBEITRARE

Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

PRAE 5% A 2 M s

"R

Percentage of
Numberof  the Company’s Number of
Name of shareholder ordinary issued share share options
of the Company Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital held
RN
i ERTRA i
FRRRREE/EB BARERME EBRYE Bk BREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@) Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 4594 -
BYNMRBRAF BERELER
CS. (BVI) Limited @ Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 45.94 -
el NG
Puttney Investments Limited (‘PIL") (b) Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.68 -
ERERER
Hutchison International Limited ("HIL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
BRI RA
Hutchison Whampoa Limited ("HWL") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEEHARRAE ([ME]) BRREHRA
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CKH") (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RIEX (RE)BRAR(RE]) BBIEHRT
CKHutchison Holdings Limited (‘CKHH *) (b) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RINCEXEBRAR ([RM]) BRI RA
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.73 -
X ERBRER
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,294,000 212 -
ERERRE
(@ Through a controlled corporation 9,498,000 381 -
BRREHRA
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ (NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY) INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(a) The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and subsidiaries of CKH are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting
power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and
HIL were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by
PIL.

(0 The 9,498,000 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited ("“PSAL"). PSAL
was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and accordingly, Mr. Webb
David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there was no connected transaction nor continuing
connected transactions which need to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no other material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

EY zx

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COMPUTER AND
TECHNOLOGIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 71 to 206, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HAEEREE

RREXEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

KRB 2 BT NAEEREEZSE

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognised certain contract revenue from solutions
and integration services and application services by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the contracts.
The determination of the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the contracts involved significant management judgements
and estimates including total contract costs, remaining costs to
completion and contract risks. Revenue, costs and gross profit
realised on such contracts can vary from management’s original
estimates because of changes in conditions.

Relevant disclosures for the significant judgements and estimates
are included in note 3 to the financial statements.

KEEPEKHIRA

BRESRERBITA NMER - BREATS R R
BIAREARBGETAGEA « BEFRETANMERE -
BREASEBHERE - DERASOKA - TR 8B
TRARS QAR - EMANERZ WA  KAREFE
I8 5 8 2 T 32 B R A 2 f 5T TR -

BREXRHE RAT Z AR REHRN M RRMES -

We performed testing on the Group's controls over its processes
to record contract costs and contract revenue, the calculation of
the Group's inputs to the satisfaction of the contracts relative to
the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of those contracts
and the identification of onerous contracts. We selected material
contracts entered into during the year to understand the contract
terms such as the contract revenue and the scope of deliverables
and services. We checked to the project status reports and related
supporting documents showing costs incurred to date and
compared to the total budgeted costs to evaluate the measure
of progress used by management for revenue recognition and
management’s assessment on provision for onerous contracts.
We also checked the project revenue calculations prepared by
management.

Apart from the above, we assessed the significant judgements
made by management, through the examination of project
documentation, including the total budgeted contract costs, by
checking to the invoices or quotations provided by suppliers and
comparing to the work hours used by similar projects in the past,
and discussion of the status of those projects in progress with
management, finance, and technical personnel of the Group. We
also compared the budgeted contract costs with the actual costs
incurred to assess whether there were any material differences.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

REEZEE

BEELEE (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EREM BT NAEERREEZSE

Gooadwill impairment assessment

The carrying amount of goodwill of the Group as at 31 December
2018 was HK$134 million (representing 21% of the total assets),
which was allocated to two cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
the application services CGU and the solutions and integration
services CGU. Significant management’s judgements and
estimates were involved in the impairment assessment of
goodwill. The determination of the net recoverable amount was
based on management's estimates of variables such as budgeted
revenue, gross margins and the discount rates.

The significant judgements and estimates and disclosures for the
goodwill impairment testing are included in notes 3 and 14 to the
financial statements.

B E

EEER - E-N\F+-_A=1t-—BZRE2EKEESR
134,000,000 7 (G B ERE Z221%) + WH I E /M ER
EEEM((REEEBM]) @ AERRGIE S EEBMIA
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3Kk 14
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We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating and testing the assumptions and methodologies
used by management in their impairment assessment. We
assessed the budgeted revenue growth and profit margins of
the cash-generating units by making reference to the historical
trend analyses. For the discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections, we assessed the inputs used to determine the rates
by referencing to market data and benchmarking to comparable
companies in the same industry. We also performed sensitivity
analysis on management estimates and assumptions used in
evaluating whether a reasonably possible change in assumptions
would cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.

We also evaluated the adequacy of the related disclosures.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E®RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By RBE®RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

6 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #{Z—ZF— \F+-_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net
Foreign exchange differences, net
Fair value gains/(losses), net:

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Investment properties
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses, net
Other expenses

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

Basic

Diluted

L'ON

$HE KRB A

EH

H A YA Je W s 5 BR

b 3 2 R HE

N EWE S (BER) FE
WA EEEEARZ

MBEE
REWE

HE RO HRAX
— R RITH R FRE

H At FI 32
Bk % A 3

PS5 X

BAREBEABRGERFE

i

BAREBERKRREN

BRER

11

Q.

2018 2017
—EB-—N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TExT TFAT
281,427 253,915
(121,492) (110,424)
159,935 143,491
10,084 9,264
329 (905)
(384) 1,380
4,406 3,590
(35,358) (34,497)
(57,788) (55,453)
(6,024) (6,024)
75,200 60,846
(7,172) 6,517)
68,028 54,329
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK cents HK cents
AL &L
27.85 2243
27.78 2236
Bl ZmEE BB A A T N\FFR



-0

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SLEEHEWNER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #{Z—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investment:
Change in fair value
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
Net other comprehensive income/(loss)
that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
R F A 68,028 54,329
Hiap2mEUBA
RAEEEME > E4cm|
WA (E518) Al se BB ¥
DEEEmK
AR ERE
NEEES) - (100)
BEFINEBRBHEEZ
E X =% (4,293) 5,020
RAEZEME  EtEm|
WA (E518) B 5] fE
EHoEEETER (4,293) 4920
BRATAEEANEEREE
2HER AL
63,735 59,249
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R BRI R

31 DECEMBER 2018 —=— \F+_A=1+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e R 12 3,120 3,950
Investment properties HEMEE 13 75,661 71,255
Goodwiill EES 14 134,485 134,485
Other intangible assets Hmp&E 15 54,062 49,706
Available-for-sale investment AHBEERE 16 - 1,780
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFELERARZ
profit or loss B EE 22 4,633 2,544
Deposits i ia 19 2,260 =
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE E 26 2,713 2,984
Total non-current assets EmBEERE 276,934 266,704
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories EE 17 723 1,433
Trade receivables FEW & 5 BR K 18 43,572 41,363
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - Ze Rk
other receivables E {th fE 3008 19 14,999 15,466
Due from contract customers JEM & BB P IR 20 - 16,276
Contract assets BREE 21 20,627 -
Financial assets at fair value through BATELERAKRZ
profit or loss W EE 22 10,164 10,857
Tax recoverable AR AR IE 6,681 8,433
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITIER 23 2,100 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents HERERRECEE 23 255,545 246,547
Total current assets MENEEBE 354,411 341,446
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables, other payables FEE SRR - EAbERFRIR
and accruals K FEFT IR 24 74,096 74,274
Due to contract customers B EHEFFIA 20 = 20,407
Deferred revenue PEIEI A - 35,969
Contract liabilities aHEE 25 56,954 -
Tax payable FE SR I8 9,501 9,285
Total current liabilities nREEEHAE 140,551 139,935
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 213,860 201,511
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERAEHAME 490,794 468,215
Bl ZmEE BB A A T N\FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
RE M BIRR &R ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —&=— \F+_A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FknBAE
Deferred tax liabilities B IEA R 26 12,730 15,247
Net assets BEFE 478,064 452,968
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 7 #EH A EiE S
Issued capital BETRA 27 24,949 24419
Share premium account f& 15 % (B BR 27 53,104 38,493
Shares held under the restricted share award RIEA R HIR% D B 5T &l
scheme BB 2 in 27 (5,809) (1,919)
Other reserves H b 376,221 362,879
Proposed final and special dividends R R B N e B B B 10 29,599 29,096
Total equity A 478,064 452,968
Ng Cheung Shing & & & Leung King San, Sunny 3 5 %
Director E%F Director E%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEDEER
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 HiZE—ZT— \GF+_A=+—HILtFE

wners of the parent
P

Share Sh ed Asse vest Exchange
premium
account

Notes
15t

special Total

dividends equity

At T January 2017 R=E—+F-F—-H 24419 38493 (2447) 2,745 (7.227) 1972 71 733 (1,749) 359615 24207 441482
Profitfor the year REERT - - - - - - - - - 54329 - 54329
Other comprehensive income REEEMEEMA -
for the year:
Change in fairvalue of an “EIfRHEREATHE
available-for-sale investment -] - - - - - - (100 - - - - (100
Exchange differences on translation BN EREEE L
of foreign operations EREE - - - - - - - - 5020 - - 5020
Total comprehensive income REERENNEE
for the year - - - - - - (100 - 5020 54329 - 59,249
Vestingof shares heldunderthe R HIRHZBEEET
restricted share award scheme R 58 29 - B 58 (528) = = = = = = = =
Share award arrangements R B ZH 0 - - - 691 - - - - - - - 691
Transferred from retained profits ~ E&AREEF - - - - - - - 13 - (13 - -
Final and special 2016 didends ~ ER=F-~ERER
declared HAIRE - - - - - = = = - (20 Q400 p429)
Interim and special 2017 dividends  —E—+ER B LR
BRE 10 - - - - - - - - - (4m) - )
Proposed finaland special 2017 RE=T—tFRHAR
dividends KRS 10 - - - - - - - - - (90 290% -
At31 December 2017 RIB—t%
+-A=t+-A 24419 38493 (1919 2908 (7220 1972 621 746 32 360,588 29,09 452,968

MR EER AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REERSBR(R)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #{Z—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRERARL

Other reserves

Rtofdta

Shares held
under the Available-
restricted for-sale Proposed
Share share Share-based Asset investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium award  payment  Goodwill revaluation revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special
capital  account scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends
RE
ARH
RH%R it RERA
B&f R ESE  ROAR BE KEEf HERE i EXRE RE  REH
k& EER  2RH i e i EfRE Eg fe petil] RE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEx TR TEnr TEx TR TR TEnr TEx  TER  THE=n

(note 30) (note 30)
(Hf3E30) (i 30)
At January 2018 R=E-NE-F—-A 24,419 38,493 (1,919) 2,908 (7,227) 1,972 621 746 3271 360,588 29,096 452,968
Fffect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RABENBREER
FoWTE 22 - - - - - - (621) - - 621 - -
At January 2018 (restated) RZF-\F-A-H
(EFR3) 2419 38493 (1,919) 2,908 (7,227) 1972 - 746 32711 361209 29,09 452,968
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - - - - 68028 - 68028
Other comprehensiveloss REEEMEEEE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation  EGINEREES 7
of foreign operations ERER - - - - - - - - (4,293) - - (4,293)
Total comprehensive income REERENNEE
for the year - - - - - - - - (4,293) 68,028 - 63,735
Purchase of shares held underthe B E AR 5k {7 1B 51 2l
restricted share award scheme BT 29 - - (4,410) - - - - - - - - (4,410)
Vesting of shares held under the BRI SR 218 T
restricted share award scheme Bh&E 29 - - 520 (520) - - - - - - - -
Sharesissued i eu of dividend AR B &1T 2 k1A 530 14,611 - - - - - - - - - 15,141
Share award arangements Ri7 B R 0 - - - 1,858 - - - - - - - 1,858
Final and special 2017 didends ~ ER=F—tERER
declared FRIRE - - - - - - - - - 90 (29,09)  (29,006)
Interim 2018 dividend 2 \ERHRS 10 - - - - - - - - - (2m) - (2m)
Proposed final 2018 dividend REZF-\ERERE 10 - - - - - - - - - (2959) 29599 -
At31 Decerber 2018 RZZ-NF
+-A=t+-R 24,949 53,104 (5,809) 4,246 (7,227) 1,972 - 746 (1,022) 377,506 29,599 478,064
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #{Z—ZF— \F+-_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Dividend income from listed investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment, net
Fair value losses/(gains), net:

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Investment properties
Depreciation
Impairment of trade receivables, net
Impairment of contract assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Increase in contract assets/amounts due from

contract customers
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, other
payables and accruals

Increase in contract liabilities/amounts due to

contract customers
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities/
deferred revenue

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

REEFHRERE
B 35 A it A
AT
RITH B WA 5
BAFEZEBSEARZ ET
BEBRBWA 5
HEWE  BERREEA
pd 1 VAU eI 6
NFEER (W) FER
BRAVELBEDARZ
MBEE
BEME
e
FENE 5 AR BURE T B8
BHEERME
Ho{h 8 7 B B 5
P He A BR 1 ST T 32 29

OO Oy O O O

TERD,/ ()

ARACE S8R FOR D (8 0)
BATHE - 5 R E A UK
I8 1 1
AWEE/ERANEFHE
18110

FEATE S8R - E A 3R
RAEE OB, (R L)
AHBE/EAAOEFRE
810
AWBME/BERAEN,
OR)

G EBHRERS
B#E B RIS B

B BIR

EEEDFEREREFE

2018 2017
—Z2-N\#F —FtF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FETT
75,200 60,846
(7,274) (3,849)
(675) (689)
(1) 18
384 (1,380)
(4,406) (3,590)
2,051 2,833
1,201 345
68 =
6,024 6,024
1,858 691
74,430 61,249
710 (1,395)
(3,410) 2,680
(1,793) (1,647)
(4,419) (6,184)
(178) 10,045
2,824 202
(2,246) 216
65,918 65,166
(4,865) (8,929)
(2,628) (1,047)
58,425 55,190

MR EER AR

—2—\FFH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERTRER(E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 #{Z—Z— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank interest received

Dividends received from listed investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Additions to other intangible assets

Payment of acquisition consideration payable

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits

Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three months
when acquired

Net cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of shares under the restricted share
award scheme

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

REEDMBRTREFR

REFHZRERE

EWRITH S

BATELBEEARZ LM
BRERBKA

BEYE BEMEREEEB

NEHMELEE

S AU (B

HEME  BERREEREE
PSR IA

EHEIRRITERORL (B )

WERRIHABEB=EAZ
ELIRFFOR D

RERPMBREREFR

MEZHMACHEERE

BEARBIRDZBAET
Betn

EREE

BEEDMARSREFR

RERERRESEEZWMFR

FNCRERERARLEE
2B B EFE

FRZAERERAREEE

RERERREEERBRDN

HEMBMARARZRAEREFR

REEE

WEKRIMEBE=EA &K

HEMER
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHE T FATT
58,425 55,190
7,274 3,849
675 689
(1,242) (914)
(10,380) 4,127)
= (14,795)

7 16
(1,029) 20,814
47,159 11,164
42,464 16,696
(4,410) -
(36,087) (48,454)
(40,497) (48,454)
60,392 23432
198,700 170,393
(4,235) 4875
254,857 198,700
255,545 246,547
(688) (47,847)
254,857 198,700




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TS ¥R R B 5

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+ A =+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the Government Electronic Trading
Services (“GETS”), cloud services and other related value added
services;

provision of information technology (“IT") solutions
implementation and application software development;
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services; business process outsourcing (‘BPO”) services; and
provision of [T systems and network infrastructure with related
design, implementation and ongoing support services; and

property and treasury investments.

079

NAREEER

PMEBASREEAERARIIRARES
MERZ2BRAR  HEMHSEMLR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton

Bermuda o KRR EBEEMBI A
%.5 %M% 100 5K BB 2 B 104E o

FAAEREREUTERER:

ALERECERASGRETRS
BRS  RRERESEERRFE
TEREOCERERSE  RKF
BETFBSR%E ([GETS]) ~ iR
M E A iERE L AR

REEMBR (BARKD BRA
REMREREHERE : REEA
R RAR R & & /BT R eI H AR
% FZEREINA (B RIZINALD)
R RIRHEMBR RS RESE
EWEE BAEBR BEEK
REXERS &

MENBFKE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
51 35 3 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Computer And Technologies
(BVI) Limited

Computer And Technologies
International Limited

HBRRBERAR

Computer And Technologies
Integration Limited

B ERERAT

Computer And Technologies
International Trading
(Shanghai) Company Limited*

R RGERERE S
(EB)BRRA!

Computer And Technologies
(Shanghai) Company
Limited*

LBMBERRRARARY

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

e

afREEn N

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RRRARE/BA

Hong Kong
Eit

Hong Kong
Bk

PRC/Mainland China

R/ hERL

PRC/Mainland China
RE /RN

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE/
HMER

Ordinary US$1,000
AR 1,0005% T

Ordinary HKS2
Non-voting deferred**
HK$5,000,000
LTER2AT
BREEEL
5,000,000 70

Ordinary HKS2
ERR2ET

US$200,000

200,000 7T

1US$3,500,000
3,500,000 7T

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

1. RARKEEEH (&)

B AR ZER
ARREEMBARZFHBMT

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
ERAEERE
BEADL
2018 2017
—E-)\F PoSSEE
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

RERK

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services,
investment holding and
treasury investments

REZAMBBRRATRER
REHRE  REERR
EBRE

Provision of system and
network integration services

REZR LB ERRE

Sale of computer networks and
system platforms

HEERBRRER TR

Provision of system and
network integration services

REZR LB ERRE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2018 —=— \F+_A=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Computer And Technologies
Investment Limited

C&T (Guangzhou) Investment
Limited
B (BN REBRB A A

C&T (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited
i (BE)REARRA

C&T (Nanjing) Investment
Limited
Mg (AR)REBRAA

C&T (Shanghai) Investment
Limited
B (E8)REBRB AR

Computer And Technologies
Solutions Limited

MBSt ERAR

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

)

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE/

dfREEmE RIEEN

British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Hong Kong LERIET
RERAHE/BE
Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2
N TREk2ET
British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Hong Kong LTRRIET
RERAEB/BE
Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2
Ei EER2ET
Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2
N TREk2ET
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
BE L @iR1000078 T

1. RARKEEHEHN (&)

Principal activities

FEXH

Investment holding and
treasury investments

REZBRREBRE

Property holding
RENE

Property holding
RENF

Property holding
RENE

Property holding
RENE

MEQE &R (&)
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR AR
BEED
2018 2017
“B-NF T tF
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

MR EER AR

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

REZAMBBRTRER
RERS

—T— )\ FF3f
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

1. RARKEEEH (&)

MEARZER (&)

Percentage of

registration and
business

AR/

afkEEmE

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE/
HmEX

Computer And Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$1,128,000
Solutions (Shenzhen) B/ R E A 11280003 1T
Company Limited*

Rgas ORI BRAR

Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
Resources Limited e AR 1000075 7T

MBEREBERAA

Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
Software (Hong Kong) Limited &7 /A 10,0008 7T

Rt 8 (BE)
BRAF

Global e-Business Services (BVI)

British Virgin Islands/

Class AUS$1,600

Limited Hong Kong Class B US$400
RRRAER/BA ABE16003ETT
BAE400%TT
Global e-Business Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,010,000
Limited BB 3@k 1,010000/8 7T
BHETHERY
e NG
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

equity attributable
to the Company
AR AR
BHEBEDL
2018
—B-N\%
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

FEXH

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

RUEEAMRBRIRER

B o PR 7%

Provision of human resources
management

REANBRER

Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation

RECEEHEARAH
2

Investment holding

REZR

Provision of enterprise
applications software
services

RECEHEARS



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Global e-Trading Services
Limited
HESHREAR AR

IPL Research Limited

Platinum China Limited

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

Issued ordinary/
registered capital

) BRTEE/

dfREEmE RIEEN

Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,501,000
BB T @R 2,501,000 7T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000
G Non-voting deferred**
HK$300,000

3R 3,000,000 7T

ERFREE

300,0007% 7T

Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
BB L@k 1000078 T

1. RARKEEHEHN (&)

Principal activities

FEXH

Provision of e-business
related services, including
government electronic
trading services
RUESTEZHRERE £
EHRETE SRS

Provision of enterprise
applications software
and related operation
outsourcing services
RECETMHEANIEERE
EIMIRRTS

MEQE &R (&)
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR AR
BEED
2018 2017
“B-NF T tF
100 100
100 100
100 100

MR EER AR

Trading of computer software
licences, provision of
training, implementation
and maintenance of software
services, and investment
holding

EESHRMA TR  RH
YD B R ER
BARREER

—T— )\ FF3f
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

1. RARKEEEH (&)

MEARZER (&)

Percentage of

registration and

business

AR/

afkEEmE

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE/
HmEX

Platinum Software Systems PRC/Mainland China Ordinary US$200,000
(Shanghai) Company B/ R E A B A 2000003 T
Limited*

AERHES(LE)

AR

Sanyo Extended System Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000,000
Services Limited G 3R 1,000,00075 75

ZHAREBBRAF

Sanyo Extended Data Hong Kong Ordinary HK$180,000
Systems Limited G 3% 180,00078 7T

ZHRRERARAA

HERRRAERAA PRC/Mainland China Ordinary US$450,000

hEl/RER EBAR450000E T

R CRF) BRAR™  Macau Ordinary MOP25,000

R E 3Bk 25000 2F9 T

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

equity attributable
to the Company
AR AR
BHEBEDL
2018
—B-N\%
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

FEXH

Trading of computer software
licences, provision of training
and implementation,
maintenance and support
services

BEESMEMSAE  _4
BIREmAREERS
B R

Provision of computer support
and programming services,
and investment holding

REEME LR RS
R AR E 2R

Provision of computer support
and programming services

REEMIELEFRE
R

Provision of enterprise
applications software
and related operation
outsourcing services
RECE AR RIEH
SEIMIRS

Provision of enterprise
applications software and
related operation

RECE AR RIEH
2E
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

#

###

*%

The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC
law.

The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary share.

Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group
or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

RFAREEER (&)

MEARZER (&)

##

#HH

*%

ZHB AR DRED BEREZEM AT IINE
Bz

ZEMB AR DREDBEEAREIMRIE
BELE -

R EB LK G AN FE T A K 2K & AT ED
FBT IR EAMKE AR o

ZEVERAEEFFZ BN ZRETER
D EZERERREZERN  TEESZS
W ERNBRREASBESREFEEBAS N
R LB ZEF - HBAREE BT
BROBEAERREBRFEARTRYE
3 AZ U ER A ££1,000,000,0007% 7T 1% - 1A &R

B Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited
G- PP EME A BH B AR AEER

K o

FREJNHEERREHUAEEFARE
BREIEFE BRAKEEEFEEZR
MAOIBAEEEBREEERZIARFMN
BRA -EERR/FIEMMBLRARZE
He<cREBNRIIE -

MEEAREEEGRAR T —/\FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 RBEE

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 iREEE (F)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill and other intangible assets) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(FRIO)-Int 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised standards has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BEREEZEE (&)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new
and revised HKFRSs are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments
introduce an exception so that a share-based payment transaction
with net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its
entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group does not have
any cash-settled share-based payment transactions and has no
share-based payment transactions with net settlement features for
withholding tax.

BREEM B REEFIR (BFTAX) R
CE-HEE T NFECFENE
HRRAKENPBHRERERIN > TR
RETERMBREENNEERTES
A

BB BHEERE 25 (BT A)
BRONZXEZH 7 EREE

ERMBRMEERNE2RETAME =K
5 BBRTHFTENRSEERN N
RRP2EE  HHBERNETEEZF
BEEFEZROMNRAZZELDE - A
R BB RERCBEFBEME A
K BEE TR (R 5 2 R R AR A
EYHLERRCEETERREEERZ
BETERETE - RFERER - Nt ER
BEERNDNRXZE - AR ARB &
2 ETMERRUNBESBEERN MR
5 ° ZEER S A—EBIINER - BUEFE
RNEETHREZBAT WEEBENETE
BMZFRRERENRRRENBEEZ
BN R Z B D BRREEER D
MRS - o ZFETES KR
REBRMDNRR S Z R RARE B FERT -
EYEKRBREERNDETRR S - %R
ZBIEFTAHEIDARIISBREGERS -
% HER] AR SR B B B A5 A0 2 R BR L 4R
TE REARAEEGETAUNREEE
BRI N TR 5 R 3 S M B TR 2 F RR A
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B HERIBEEC2E (8)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore
the comparative information was not restated and continuous to be
reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting HKFRS
9 on the statement of financial position, including the effect of
replacing HKAS 39's incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9's
expected credit losses (“ECLs").

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39 and
the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

HKAS 39

measurement

BRETHRAERITE

Category

£

Amount

&
HK$'000

TBT

classification ECL

BRMBERERNE ORI ELE
EAMBRELNBIORIFLAR T
—N\F—A— Bz &R R FE RN
REBGEAEORG B LA - AR
HE HAGMBETARHERNAE=
{EAE : SRR REREH RS -

AEEEHR T \F—A—BHNEAR
FUESEHRERBERAE - Bt - &
BRIV ESH REERER S ELSE
395k 23R ©

DERETE
UTERBIRMEBHBERELENSE
FHMBRRRNEE  BREAELMB
HELEANBOFAMEEER ([FRHE
EERD) RERBEEAFERNE
ELEEBRIENTE -

BEEBSTEREFNREER—
Z—N\F—-A—-HRBEFEM B RS LR
FORERNSBIHERNOT

HKFRS 9
measurement
Re- ERUBREENLIRHE
Amount Category
b

REBR X 85l

HK$'000 HKS'000

TBT THBT

B2 R
HK$'000

TBT

Financial assets NBEE
Available-for-sale investment B ik {H &5 & (i) AFS! 1,780 (1,780) - = N/A
Trade receivables FEW R 5530 0] L&R? 41363 - - 41363 AC
Deposits and other receivables 1% & E fth fE U518 L&R 4,804 - - 4,804 AC
Financial assets at fairvalue A FELBRARZ
through profit or loss HsEE (i FVpL¢ 13401 1,780 - 15,181 FVPL
Pledged bank deposits BEERRITER L&R 1,071 - - 1,071 AC
Cashand cashequivalents  BERERBELEE L&R 246,547 - - 246,547 AC
308,966 - - 308,966
Financial liabilities BHaE
Trade payables ERESER AC 25,306 - - 25,306 AC
Other payables Hth eI 50R AC 29,874 - - 29,874 AC
Financial liabilities included in &1 A& #1208 2 81 7%
accruals af AC 3980 - - 3980 AC
59,160 - - 59,160
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

! AFS: Available-for-sale investments

2 L&R: Loans and receivables

8 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost
4 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Notes:

(0] The gross carrying amount of the trade receivables under the column “HKAS
39 measurement — Amount” represents the amount after adjustments for
the adoption of HKFRS 15 but before the measurement of ECLs. Further
details of the adjustments for the adoption of HKFRS 15 are included in note
3 to the financial statements.

(if) The Group has classified its investment in a club membership debenture
previously classified as an available-for-sale investment as a financial asset
measured at fair value through profit or loss as the club membership
debenture did not pass the contractual cash flow characteristics test in
HKFRS 9.

Impairment
The following table reconciles the aggregate opening impairment
allowances under HKAS 39 to the ECL allowances under HKFRS 9.

Trade receivables I E Z R0
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABNFIE - 7E REMER
deposits and other receivables HEZHMBRE

The Group has determined that the adoption of HKFRS 9 did not
have a significant impact on the provision for impairment on its trade
receivables and hence did not result in an adjustment of the opening
retained profits at 1 January 2018.

<:i91

22 B ERERKEZ2E (A)

BAMBRERAULIRIF LA
(%&)

DEREE (FH)

i AFS : Al B &

2 L&R : BFR R FE M IE

3 AC : NEESHRX NS R 2 I B E I S B (&
4 FVWPL : I AFELEBSARZMBEE

ff &

() [BEESFERFERAE-—SBIRTH
FEU B 2 BR K AR AR (B 45 BRI B B IS 3R
SREAIFISKELFBRKRO SR ARG
ERHGEREER EHRMABTBEUBHRSE
ERFHEMELFARNEZFE RN
BATS AR 53

iy HwE-REMSBAEFLEHNOES AN
HHEERE AEEERESBRAER
BRAVELESARZ BUBEE R
ArnemafEr B ed M ERE
ERFEIRMENESRERFIERH -

DAL
TRERBFE G ERIFE 395 B
WERBARREREREMBERELLSE
VRNBHEEBRBRELR -

Impairment ECL
allowances allowance
under under

HKAS 39 at HKFRS 9 at

31 December Re- 1 January
2017 measurement 2018
R=Z-N\F

R-B—t& =F=E
+=RA=+-A RESEHE
BEEBS HREEE|
ER|5E395R 4 L e
RERE EfE GERBERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER

2,361 - 2,361

2,361 - 2,361

AEBEETE KRAETEWHERELERE
REHEKRE ZIRFIANBERG L EE

e ARTEAER T N\F-HA—
HEYVERE A o

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Impact on reserves and retained profits

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves and retained profits is

as follows:

Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 (available-for-sale

investment revaluation reserve under HKAS 39)

Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39

Reclassification of financial assets from available-for-sale
investments to financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9

Retained profits
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39

Reclassification of available-for-sale investments to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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22 R ERERKEZ2E ()

BERMBREEAFTIRIELR
(&)
HEERREBRNOY

BEEERMBREENSIREHER
REGENOZEINFOT

Reserves and
retained profits

il R AR E A
HK$'000
FHET
RETEMBREENF RN A FER
BBEEBEEABI9RNTHE
EREEMRE)

BIEFBE ST EREIHRR - —+F
+=-—A=+—H8N%&&% 621
M EERAHREIEREEFTVEERA

FELESARCMBEE
(621)

REBEBFBMBHREENFIRR —T—N\F
— A —B &% I

REER

REBERBSFTERE RN T —+tF
+TZA=+—HNE

MAEHEREEN P BEERATELIE
m AR EE 621

360,588

REFBMBHREENFIRN —FT—\F

— A—BWissr 361,209



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it applies,
with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15, establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption. Under this method, the standard can be applied
either to all contracts at the date of initial application or only to
contracts that are not completed at this date. The Group has elected
to apply the standard to contracts that are not completed as at 1
January 2018.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement
line item was affected as at 1 January 2018 as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 15:

Assets BE

Due from contract customers FEME X% = /I8
Contract assets EHEE
Liabilities afE

Due to contract customers ER &A% P HRIE
Deferred revenue PEIEYA

Contract liabilities EHEE

<:]|93

22 B ERERKEZ2E (A)

ERUNBRELENE1SHKKXEEF
FE &8 A
EBPBRELEDFE 1558 Mk EEFT A
REBGHEANFENREZS L  BED
SHHERIEI8KMA RIBBRE B (B
HHIIMERIN EERANESANEEY
FrEUA » BB ISR E RIS 15K
BEEANZWMANERY — @A ASHE
RN o BIBEBEBMERELERF 1598 - WA
HRERMEEEARAZFEZEYHAR
BERBRERERNRESERR - &
A EMEER S SERA AR E
REERMNIZHE BEBH T E o &
BB ANEZHEEREERERT B
ESFRARSE BRABITEME TR
HeEEHNEERBERB&HNEE
NEZHE RGHFTHER -

AEBENETANEPRAERABT BT
WEERF 155 - RIFULTHE - ZIRER
BERARMBERBRNAAESQONEER
REBRRTERNEH - NREBERE/Z
BEANEAN-_Z—\F—A—HrEAKT
FREIA A

THI A& AR AT BB I R EERF 15
BT N\F-A-BZBEMBEHRRA
BXTEZEH:

Increase/
(decrease)

#hn,

(HD)
HK$’000
FET

0] (16,276)
0] 16,276

(if) (20,407)
(ii) (35,969)
(ii) 56,376

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BERREEZRE (F)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ERMEBREEREISHRKXEEF
(continued) FEaAHKA (&)
Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement TR AN E B BRELERFES
line item was affected as at 31 December 2018 as a result of the RH T N\FT_A=T—H22EUH
adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no impact WREEXFELSFE - MBS YB®
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the Group’s HEAB 15REFEERE  IAEEE
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The first column shows B RENRERSRETETMFE -
the amounts recorded under HKFRS 15 and the second column BEEHEBRTASMBERELERFE 155
shows what the amounts would have been had HKFRS 15 not been TR SR - ME ZIEHE BTAK
adopted: MEBMBREERF ISR SEE
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018: RZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—HBEETBHIK

M

Amounts prepared under

RBUTERRERNE

Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
EEBHMK BE
&5 2= 8 BB #hm,
1558 5 22 Al (R 2)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET THET
Due from contract customers FEW & & P IR (i) = 20,627 (20,627)
Contract assets BHEE i) 20,627 = 20,627
Due to contract customers FERE&HEPIA (i) - 23,231 (23,231)
Deferred revenue EFEWA (if) = 33,723 (33,723)
Contract liabilities BRAEE (if) 56,954 - 56,954
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018 and the reason for
the changes in the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 are described below:

(i)  Unbilled amounts of revenue due from contract
customers
Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
unbilled amounts of revenue as due from contract customers.
Under HKFRS 15, the amounts are classified as contract assets.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified
HK$16,276,000 from due from contract customers to contract
assets as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the unbilled amount
of revenue as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15, HK$20,627,000 was
reclassified from due from contract customers to contract
assets in relation to the unbilled amount of revenue for the
application services segment and solutions and integration
services segment.

(i) Consideration received from customers in advance
Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance as deferred
revenue or due to contract customers. Under HKFRS 15, the
amount is classified as contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified
HK$35,969,000 and HK$20,407,000 from deferred revenue and
due to contract customers to contract liabilities as at 1 January
2018, respectively, in relation to the consideration received
from customers in advance as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15, HK$33,723,000 and
HK$23,231,000 were reclassified from deferred revenue and
due to contract customers to contract liabilities, respectively,
in relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance for the application services segment and solutions
and integration services segment.

095

22 B ERERKEZ2E (A)

EBVKREERNFEISHEKXGEF
EFEa#BKA (1)
TXRMR—E—N\F— A —HHALEM
ERRE—N\F+_A=+—HFBER
NERFTEZ S RE

i) ERENEFZARRWAEZHE

RmE BB HRE LR F 1557 A
AEEBAFARRACEERSE
WEMNEFPFHE - RBEFETHR
FEAFISH  ZEBOBEREH

E It - IRAE BB SRS #ERIE 15
RE - BEE-_ZTZ—NE—HA—HBX
HEWASRBE L XEEE -
—NEFE—A—HEKAEHBEFERE
16,276,000787T ' EFM D BERKNEE °

R-ZE—N\E+-_A=+—H &
BEBVHmELENE 155 B
REERRG D BMBATRERESE
RRBED B2 AAZRASE A
JE W& #) % P 5 IH 20,627,000 7% TC
BN BREANEE -

(i) FEBREFKE
R AN & 78 B 5 S 2R RIS 15 57 AT -
AEEHRAREPREER/EL
WAKEREHNEFKE - RIEE
BUMBHRELERE IS ZSED
BRANEE-

E it BB Y SRS E RS 15
e A _ZT—N\NFE—HF—HWE
WEFREL  AEEK =_Z— N\
F—HA—HEZTWARERMEHD
B FRIE D Bl 535,969,000 7T &
204070007870 - EFOEESLEE -

RZEBE—NE+-_BA=+—80
BEEASYBEREERFEISH B
Bk B ERRTE D B RT R K
EXRRBHOBBEUEFRE AR
WA ERNENEERIEBD A
33,723,000 78 7T & 23,231,000 7T ' &=
FoBEEENEE-

MERGEEEGRAR =2 \FFR
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 BHBEREEZEE (8)

DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property

Amendments to HKAS 40, clarify when an entity should transfer
property, including property under construction or development,
into or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. A mere change in management's intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to determine the date
of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the situation where
an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as
a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group’s financial statements as the
Group's accounting policy for the determination of the exchange
rate applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

Q.

23 EEMEERER2ERBIME

= 22 A

AEBYERNUEMHEHRERER TR
1B i R AR # 7] MEIER] BB M 53R

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(FRIO)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

HER| o
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CHEMAEEREM 2E B

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test
to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CHEMAEERER 2E BB

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in
the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all
leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group plans
to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The Group plans
to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts
whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of initial
application. During 2018, the Group has performed a high-level
assessment on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 CHEMAEEREM 2E B

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s financial
statements.

HK(FRIO)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope
of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the restatement
of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

WA (&)

BB ENEIRRBEBEAELES
ﬂ(fzaTﬁ)E%ﬁﬁméK M ARBFTER
fim A & IRTEHRR - SEmMABEERIE L
A EERMBRRIE—RENNEE
ERAEERBRYERRELERE @ 8l
ZIERRBERN - EARETIERA - EXRMEUA
E"1:. SHMBERELHE o mr] & IETEH
EHERerEFZHAEARE - A48
ﬁéﬁ%&ﬁu°$glﬁ%§ T_F
i_ﬂ_ai}mﬁﬁux—rf uT M—rf%%ﬁﬁ
HIreHAKENBRREEMNERTE -

B (ERVBRERBEEE ) ZEE
BREGFEEHRBEESRFERTSLTE
BIENRRHERNTEEE CGBEEIT
TEE R ASAR M) B R P15 (BDER KRBT )
SERE c ZRBUTNERRE S E
BIZE 125 BEISMNY R IE BT - BLED
BLFE TR TE A T8 BT 1 A A A0 A 25 e R 51 48
BT ZRBETHREO)EBESZRE
BEERETEERE () EEYHISHES
MHTEREEREMENBR : (NEBW
IEEEERT s MR FIEEE A K
FAHEERE  ABAHRKIRE RHE
FivERBNAEEEERIBERAES - %
BEK T RASEEREZEEPER © ok
EREIRIER BRI MAZmE
ZETRE T EBWER (TES A LRER) °
m%s&%%@:%—ni—ﬂ—atﬁ
*%% ZEZREERTSH LB
ST EEERNERTE -

(]



‘(:’101

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \&+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEERBUE

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30") in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwiill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESFBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement ATEE
The Group measures its investment properties, debt investment AEERSREHEEEBZATETNE
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting HEREME EBRRERBRAEE - AF
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset BEMS2EERFEAHREBERFTR S
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market FREEEEMEIEEEEMIT 2
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement B - A TFEFENBREBELEEENEE
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or BEZRINZEERBEBEZCEEM SR
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the (hEXEmE) S EERBERZAT
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most LG HEITZBRFRET EEZSHZANZ
advantageous market for the asset and liability. The principal or the MiZARANEEAZES -BEXBEZ
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The ARFEDNFEAMS2EEEBRZEESRE
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions BETEERKSHEAZBRMTE ' &
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, FREMIE2EE DIRERELENZE M
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. =
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account FMBEEZ AT EFEZERMISRESE
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using BERNERREEARERAZEENER
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market BELETFTEAGRe RREARFERZE
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. E 25— Ti52 B i BREUE B M 2= 2 82
j] o
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the REBRARSBEAEBEERITNGRE
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure AEB AT E R FE 2 HERDT - #i&
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and HE B R ASE s RAEEEEARE
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. N BRGARBZRAESERD °
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed FEATEIRUBRRIBELMBEEE
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value REBTIATXAMREEEE A T ER
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is EEEAXEZHERFBMABERAT
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: BEEREBEADE :
Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets £ — REREEXEBGERERED
for identical assets or liabilities B AR HERETE
Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the F2E — UNEABRBATEFESE
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value ExE s ERR 8 ASE
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly HREHSBEBER 2EE
TEETE
Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the %3 - NEMBBATEFERE
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value ERE s R RRRE A SE
measurement is unobservable HIEMEERABEE G

B AR E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESFBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties AEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ERIERT BEATHER SRS
ZBEANT
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family @ MBI TAL BIZZALsZAL

and that person: 2T RN B A R E

() has control or joint control over the Group; () FEHIEREIAEE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAREBBEAFE: X

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (il AASEITEEFAE2E
Group or of a parent of the Group; EEHERKE :

or 54
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) WS T Tfﬂ & BN E S AR
applies: EEHA &

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEASEBER-—SEH2Z
group; PN

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —HEBAES—EBIZHEA
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of AREERE (hAE —ERE
the other entity); S T/NCIRE ) =N A EER

BAaa)

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same iy HRERBEAEEHAR—F=
third party; FZEERE

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HERBRE=FEREZEE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ThE - ME—ERRZE=F

g;&EZHﬂM/\

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v ERA/AASEXEASEEH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity H2ERBMEEN SR 25
related to the Group; Bita AEHEl

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person V) EBX@FHEATER T
identified in (a); H R

MEEAREEEGRAR T —/\FFR



106 o

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued) BREAL (&)
(viily a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) R@QOPTEAMALTHE Lﬁé
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (i) BREzx—HEEEBZEMKER
provides key management personnel services to the A(REEZz—H9) AXEE
Group or to the parent of the Group. HAEE B ARREETEE

BABRT -

ME BERREBRTE

M - BB RRE AR ERZFITE
FAEFRERBERIIER - W5 - BFE Rk&E
IEHZEJ?$TE@%EE§TF&EH1§7§F

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and

any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 2% to 4%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms

and 20%
Computer equipment and 20% to 33'/,%
software
Furniture, fixtures and other 18% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 8 to 10 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of
10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products/services not exceeding
five years, commencing from the date when the intangible assets are
available for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, and fair value through profit or loss. The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

KEHE

N EERBEZB/AMD BHERERF
BRHEBEAZHEE  JIAKREHE - EX
SERLHEAR AEENEEHETHE
hWZBEAAFRBEE  REEHEET
Z WA S LB ARRBHEFT ABRR
EAKERABAAR REEHETZE
NHESUERFZEYRNBRRNR -

REME AN T SN R PR
FIH - HRAEARAEH R - EHE
MREEA DS L RETE S -
EHMEENRTIIFFA L REFEA - 5
EYE BMEARBIBREHRE -

RERHMMBEE (RESEM
BHREZAFIVNEE - B=F
—N\F—-—A—BREEH)
NSmARGTE
MIBEEENN P HERE DB R ERIZEH
RAGERRAFELBEARNYBE
E o M FHERE - MIBEED BEURRN
MBEENANRERERHEAKEE
BREWHBEENEBRA - BRI EEX
BMEKRDAARECEAATRENAL
BERHBEEAREKRDZENRKE SRR
S AEERAFEME (WHKEEL
FRAFELBEEAR) RIRAFTEN
BEE UBEABERSAAKECDE
RAITRE AN EKRE 5 RRIBE T X
WAHER (BT N\F-—A—BEE
R FrEl R IR B B M ISR E RIS 15
BTN ZERTE -

DEREEERASIE AP ERE M EE
WAGTENMBEEELNRERERM
BAXNARERAREENEASELENNE
(EERINARERFE) -

MERGEEEGRAR =2 \FFR



110 ‘:)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria
for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies

under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair

value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January

2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition

and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investment

Available-for-sale financial investment of the Group is a non-derivative
financial asset in debt securities. Debts securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, an available-for-sale financial investment is
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investment is reported as interest income and is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out
for “"Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESFBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets (policies under RIERANKEE (RESBIHK
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and WREZRFEIFHNEE B=F
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January —N\E—BF—BREARRBRES

2018) BRI EAEIORMEE R
- N\E—A—BAER)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or WS EE (ER B EEEP —I0
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised D — BN BEEREF —5H) E
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial EETIBERTRIEER (AR AEREZ
position) when: RE M BAROR KRB MBR)
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or . BZEERDRBEEREZENEE
Wk
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from . AEEEEERDREZEERS
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received mE 2R HERE [ER] 25
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under MAEAEREAENLEERLERBRAT
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has ME=ZAEFEZNEURRE A=
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or MEE: RQAEBEEEEZEE
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially RAE DR KER o) ARE
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control WREENREZEE BRI D
of the asset. B RElW - EEEEZEE 2
il 7
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows WERAEBEEREGEERBRSRE
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it ZRENMNEIILEELH - AR EES
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of EEE LREEEHE AR 2 Bk KRB o
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained BHAEZENNMRE B E 2B AN R R
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred Nk JREEEEE CIEGE BIAE
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred iR HEEE2MRZEEE E CRERRZ
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that BEE - RZIBAT  NEBE IS ERIEE
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred AE -BEEEAENMBBABEDARBRA
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects SEMRBENREER/ELEE -

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the BE2EEASERCEREEEL R
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying B EEREENUZREEAECREEE
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that HAEENEEEZREHBELR ZUR
the Group could be required to repay. EE&EFTH ©
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESFBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under MBEERE(REEEBMERS
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) ZAFIRNBEK  BZZE—N\HF

—A—BEEA)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments REEFRWIFRATELBERFENME
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the BB TERREREEBEREE - BHE
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance EEBDERBRENERNE RSN
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to SHEAEEFHRBNFAARESRE ZH
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective WEREMEE @ WA RERF XA ELE
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the BRIR - JEEIR & M E B IE L S TFEE
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral MRS REREKENERNEMEE
to the contractual terms. RAERENESRE o
General approach —AEX
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which TEHEEEE S MERBRER - X a7
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial FTHERABESAENNEERR  BHE
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from EEBEARKNREARNAEKREENE
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a HHFEHEEEE (2@ A EEEEER)
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been et ﬁEAEi: B EREEZIE M
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss WEERE VAEREHNREGFHES
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining Mz B &R f’EH:'IEﬂE%ﬁ BAEZREN
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime EHEFANREM(ZHEHREEESS) -
ECL).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk REREHE - ZFE B EEERR B
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial SHERANREREE EH - REEERE - K
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares SEeRPBETARFEAPEEEY
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the HY =B LB 7 T B R ¥ 2P MR B B AR a8
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial AW R - EHFT AR AEEgERE
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers f@&ﬂi? HRER  BIERELRHRE
reasonable and supportable information that is available without BB TN EXARNLSE HNERKATE EE
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking #t e
information.
The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual AEERE  BEERAEE0K - &
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group BEEBEN -AM RETERL ER
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or BRIMRERBREAEBTAAIRERERE
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the REEFFOEREERAEERN 22U
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account B RERESLFIER - NEBE AR
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is R—IEVBEEECBEN EMESETE
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the A EWENBEeRER  —EBYKEE
contractual cash flows. B 4l 88 o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBERBE ()

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under MBEERE(REEEBMERS

HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) ZAFIRNBEK  BZZE—N\HF

(continued) —A—RAEEAR) (&)

General approach (continued) — B AE (FE)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under RESEA AT ENT B EERA—RTE

the general approach and they are classified within the following BERBELTEREEEBEENF SRR

stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which DR EREKE SRFARRN iz

apply the simplified approach as detailed below. b T IERIN ©

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not E—BER — BYVSREAURGEERRE
increased significantly since initial recognition and for ERELHANBME T ARZ
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal ZRMEER12ME A EEE
to 12-month ECLs EEiB B 2EBERE

B T A

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased F_MEER — BYISHERAUREGEERRE
significantly since initial recognition but that are not E EAETERRIEEER
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss BENYBEEZMBETAR
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ZEELBAERZHBEHREER
ECLs EiEz e EEEEREN

B ITA

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting F-MEE — RREBHEEEEREDN
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit- MHREE (ETEEBEX
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured IRSAEERE) kS %
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs ER2HBEHEESECS

B EEBRRENMBEE

Simplified approach B A%

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a B 5 B8 K B A K 0 ok AN S B FE AR AT 1T 4
significant financing component or when the Group applies the BEAFERARERNREKD VEMNEKRE
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant SERRENEEMS AEBERTERE
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach MEEBERERADLTE - RBEEH(ER
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group o AEEVWEBSEERRES  mE
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss RIES RS BHEN 2 BEBEEBEER
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group EEEE AEEERIIBEHBAREE
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit ERERTENREER - WIRER AR
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the EMAEMRZREERBIELRAE

debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant MEEEAMEKSHEKRE ZERRE
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as HNEEREERWIE  AEERERERE
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating MBREAE A A EEREEEER
ECLs with policies as described above. HE5BUER

MERGEEEGRAR =2 \FFR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investment

For available-for-sale financial investment, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of profit or
loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans, borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher
of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy
as set out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018)"; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own
equity instruments.

Shares held under the restricted share award
scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for a
restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held
under the restricted share award scheme” and deducted from equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Deferred revenue (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in advance from
the rendering of the corresponding services. Revenue is recognised
and deferred revenue is released to the statement of profit or loss
when the corresponding services have been rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit
or loss.

RERERAALEE
BEARSRERME RERSARS
EEBEFERSREHER  RREBA
% — RN = A A NEE AR R S R 8
BRABHSHERS  BEERZABRTA
ZEABRBIERE IRBRERME
RERAEERSERARDH ZRITE
o

BEAMBRREMS B RkFRAE
BEEBREREATIRRH 2 FHRE IR
TER(BRERFRRMEE EER AL
ZEE) °

B
ERBESHETABEIEAIEERT
mB&AEASHRERBITABEE A
BRE RSB R A5 RIZARER
B -

WITREEEKN  RIRBHRETEEHRS
HeRxEREHREE R 2 RERR
e KR REBBRERREEZ
EIFIABER -

MERGEEEGRAR =2 \FFR



124 o

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of goods and provision of software, GETS
and PBO services is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods and services.

Revenue from the rendering of solutions and integration services
and application services (other than sale of goods and provision of
software or the provision of maintenance services) is recognised over
time, using an input method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the services, because the Group’s performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated
total costs for satisfaction of the services.

Revenue from the provision of maintenance services is recognised
over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of solutions and integration services
and application services (other than the sale of goods or the
provision of maintenance services), on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting policy
for “Contracts for services (applicable before 1 January 2018)"
below, or when the relevant services have been rendered;

(0 from the provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the respective contract, or

when the relevant services have been rendered;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January

2018) (continued)

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

() dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract assets (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received a consideration (or an
amount of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment
is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

Contract costs (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract costs (applicable from 1 January 2018)

(continued)

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related is recognised.
Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Contracts for services (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Contract revenue on the rendering of solutions and integration
services and application services comprises the agreed contract
amount. Contract costs comprise direct equipment and material
costs, labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in
rendering the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of solutions and integration services
and application services (other than those that are recognised on a
time proportion basis over the period of the contract or when the
relevant services have been rendered, as appropriate) is recognised
based on the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided
that the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to
completion can be measured reliably. The percentage of completion
is established by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared
to the total costs to be incurred under the transaction, or the value
of services performed to date as a percentage of the value of total
services to be performed under the transaction. Where the outcome
of a contract cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management. Where contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.  Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount due to contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a
restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees of the Group (including directors
of the entities comprising the Group) receive remuneration in the

form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services FRBSIEABRETAE 2RKE (RELER

as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). 1)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants BT -F+—AtHB  GFRbE
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at BEESETCREEER S KA TR
the date at which they are granted. REERZAFEFE -

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee BRELEER 52 KAERRA 2 AEEA R
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, SRENERE R KRG IEE Z BRER
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions EERMNAZHER BEEBRSHEEE

FEEZREBEARBEER FHER B
M RMRFEHEERLD  ARAEE
REBRRBERBRATAHE 2K
EfhE - FHMREBRER ZIREKETA - =

are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that

will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and shares held under the
restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional share dilution
in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January
2005.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of each reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
retirement benefit scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBRME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect
the determination of the timing of revenue from contracts with
customers:

Determining the timing of satisfaction of services for certain contract
revenue from solutions and integration services and application
services.

The Group concluded that certain contract revenue from solutions
and integration services and application services is to be recognised
over time because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group. The fact that another
entity would not need to re-perform the services that the Group has
provided to date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of the Group’s performance as it
performs.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in
measuring the progress of the services for certain contract revenue
from solutions and integration services and application services
because there is a direct relationship between the Group’s effort (i.e.,
labour hours incurred) and the transfer of services to the customer.
The Group recognises revenue on the basis of the labour hours
expended relative to the total expected labour hours to complete the
services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision
for income taxes. Determining income tax provision requires
management to make estimates and assumptions and involves
judgement on the tax treatment of certain transactions, assessment
of the probability of tax uncertainties and interpretation of applicable
tax rules. These estimates, assumptions, judgements and assessments
affect the amounts that are reported in these financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account any changes in tax legislation and/or underlying
assumptions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2018 was HKS$ 134,485,000 (2017: HK$134,485,000). Further
details are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of related
non-financial assets at 31 December 2018 was HK$57,182,000 (2017:
HKS$53,656,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair value
at the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 13 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days
past due.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in notes 18 and 21 to the financial
statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. XESTHHERMEE (H)
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Estimation uncertainty (continued) AT THBEZ (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHHBA
The Group recognises certain contract revenue on the rendering of EANGEREEA EHHER  ARBERE
services by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of $E%E@ﬂ€ni\%ﬁ A E TR AR 1
the contracts at the end of the reporting period, when the outcome RETEHRA - TE2BITENHEE IR
of a contract can be estimated reliably. The progress towards ERAY @J%?ﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁmﬁiﬁﬁkmﬁ' &
complete satisfaction of the contracts is measured by reference to B HGE - HE RS EAKRKRER qu
the labour hours expended relative to the total expected labour TEH A BB - (B DIRIBEBEIEE R
hours to complete the services. Significant assumptions such as the B N AR AE o

duration of the projects, are required to estimate the total expected
labour hours. The estimates are made based on past experience and
knowledge of management.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESHER

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business RAEER AEERBEERRRGE

units based on their products and services and has three reportable DEMFEN - WAIFH AT = E 7] s 79L&

operating segments as follows: EOED

(@  the application services segment that primarily engages in the @ EARBIHXDEEXZAEHER
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business HOERERBREREFRHBERS -
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise BREEETBEREMSEZERS
application software with implementation and ongoing WEXEREY: RENEFES
support services; and the GETS, cloud services and other related BR7% - v AR 7S S E B RA IR (B AR TS

value added services;

(b)  the solutions and integration services segment that primarily (b) FRTRREKRE D AR EZK
engages in the IT solutions implementation and application EEMBERBRAT RE & IERE
software development; provision of IT and related operation/ HER: RREMBERIEBEE
infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO services; and provision S EB RN RS - EISIRIRIN
of IT systems and network infrastructure with related design, IR RRHEEARKE ARG LS
implementation and ongoing support services; and WEMBIE BABBARE Bt

RFEEXERS &

(0 the investments segment that primarily engages in various © BEDHBDHEENBTRBEZEK
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property BEY EFaEindEs kAR
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation /Y BEARBEZYERE  UNER
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and 5 EBIRE A RIUAR B A R F
interest income and/or for capital appreciation. %Hﬁl)\&/jﬁﬁﬁa‘@

MEEAREEEGRAR T —/\FFR
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit before tax except that unallocated
interest income, unallocated foreign exchange differences, net,
corporate and other unallocated depreciation, corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these

liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior years.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments

Segment revenue:

Otherincome and gains, net

Total

Segment results

Recondilation:

Unallocated interest income

Unallocated foreign exchange
differences, net

Corporate and other unallocated
depreciation

Corporate and other unallocated
expenses

Profit before tax

Segment assets

Reconcilation:

Corporate and other unallocated
assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Reconciliation:

Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities

Total liabilities

PHHBA
Sales to external customers (note 5) $HE FAMREF (HfE5)

EfRARMEFE

it

F8RA
55
AAEHEA
AHEEHEHE
SRREAARE

LERABADRAR
BB

AHEE

#%:
CRREBADEEE
HESE

AHER

#%:
LRREMRNERE

AEEE

4. RETBER (A)
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* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$281,427,000 (2017:
HK$253,915,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of

HK$10,084,000 (2017: HK$9,264,000) in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

253,915,000;87C) °

Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
FE Rk AT EREHER RE ag
2018 217 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“8-0\%F |25 tF ZB-)\f ZF tF ZE-\f 22 CE-\f 2 {F
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
Téx T Thx T Thx T TH ThL
153,853 137822 124,745 113462 2,829 2631 281,427% 253915%
2,134 4751 1 (25 675 689 2,810" 5415"
155,987 142573 124,746 113437 3,504 3320 284,237 259330
56,720 52027 34,671 2829 6,872 7810 98,263 88,132
7214 3849"
329 (905)
(1,170) (1828)
(29,49) (28402)
75,200 60846
214,518 208493 55,780 48529 91,331 87349 361,629 344371
269,716 263,779
631,345 608,150
93,533 87935 30438 34230 930 936 124,901 123,101
28,380 32081
153,281 155,182
* ERGEaEaikzima kA
281,427,000 T (Z & — t¢ :

. PREFEBEERAZEMKIAR
Uy 5 F 58 510,084,000 8 7T (= —+
£ 1926400078 7T) °

MR GEEERA
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

Application Services

EREH

2018 017
ZE-\F ZF(F
HKS'000 | HKSO00
TEn | TAR

ZE-\E 2T (%

4, K&

7 ERE R (&)

(a) EE2H (&)

Solutions and
Integration Services

BRAERRAURH
2018 017

HK$'000 HK$ 000
4% | TR

Investments Total
k& g
2018 2017 2018 2017

“E-\E “E-LE -E-\E 3 LiE

HK§000 SO0 HKS'000  HKSO00
Thn | TR TEr | TAR

Other segment information: ~ HAIAHER
Netfairvalue gains on investment & EMEATFEMEFE

properties = -
Netfairvalue gainsflosses)on ~~ RAFEZREAE

financialassets at fair value HBEEATEYE/

through profitor loss (Bi8) 5% - -
Amortisation ofotherintangivle At EERH

assets 6,024 6,024
Depreciation ik 567 603
Comorateand other nallocated  EREtAAENE

depreciation

Impaitmentlosses, net recognised FERA B R ER 2 BlE

inthe consolidated statement  ESIEIRAE®
of profit orloss* 1,201 345

Capital expenditure™ BAR% 938 235

Comorateand other unalocated  REREMFARERET
capital expenditure

* Including impairment losses, net recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services
segment and the solutions and integration services segment
of HK$1,201,000 (2017: HK$345,000) and HK$68,000 (2017: Nil),
respectively.

** Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

280 368
68 =
10,414 4139

*%

4,406 3590 4,406 3590
(384) 1380 (384) 1380
= = 6,024 6,024

34 34 881 1,005
1,170 1828

2,051 2833

- = 1,269 345

= = 11,352 4374
210 667

11,622 5041

BRERGEBERAMTERREER
EE%”%&%%E'}‘&%&H&%%
B2 8 18 & B F 58 9 Bl A1,201,000
BT (ZF ti 345,000/ 7T) &
680008 TL (Z T —+HF : &) °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Geographical information
(i) Revenue from external customers

FHBA
HETHRRP

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers

The revenue information is based on the locations of the

customers.

(ii) Non-current assets

Hong Kong
Mainland China

AN

Q 143

4. BEIHER (A

(b) HEEHR

() REMPREFZWA

Hong Kong and other
countries/regions Mainland China
EERAMER HE FERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-\F 22 LF ZB-0\f 2T LF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THER TR
212,630

186914 68,797 67,001

Total
He
2018

“g-0\%

HK$000
TER

HKS'000
T

281,427 253915

-

(i) FARBEE

WABEMTIAR PN A E

2018 2017
—B-N\F | T tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F# T T T

B 128,721 115,465
R A 138,607 143,931
267,328 259,396

The non-current assets information is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

(c) Information about a major customer
Revenue from an external customer individually amounting to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from a major
customer of HK$80,520,000 was derived from the application
services segment and the solutions and integration services
segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from a major
customer of HK$61,437,000 was derived from the application
services segment and the solutions and integration services
segment.

FRBDEEEMIREEME
W25 BERAERGFRMBT
HAREEMAEE °

(0 —BEXFEXFZEHR
KE—BINARPE Z WA ERIME A
EEAW A 10%IA E

B2 Z—N\F+-_A=+—HIt
FE - RE—BEEEFZWRAB
80,520,000 7T B K B JE
PR D SBFNAR R 75 2= R & A AR 75

2 EB °

HE_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—H1
FE - RE—BEEEFZWRAB
6143700087 BT IIKEE
FBRTE D SRR R 5 5= R & AK R 7S

2 EB
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA HtlR AR WS FHE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA DT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHHEA 278,598 -
Provision of enterprise applications software and A ERECEERAEGLE T
e-business services for enterprises including RS RE  BRERETEEK
the provision of enterprise application KRB R IRTG B E FE A
software with implementation and ongoing % RBERETFESRSE =
support services; and the GETS, cloud services ity AR 765 % 2L At 4R 8 3 8 AR 75
and other related value added services - 137,822
Provision of IT solutions implementation IR EMBHR AL RE M M E
and application software development; AEMER: RHEEABRER
provision of IT and related operation/ TR EE R R AN BRTS
infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO EEMIEINRT : RIBHE
services; and provision of IT systems and SR R4 R S E R
network infrastructure with related design, EARRBRE ERREES
implementation and ongoing support services & AR 7% = 113,462
Revenue from other sources REHMRIFERBA
Gross rental income from investment properties & ¥ % 2 f & WA 258 K B 75
and interest income from treasury investments & & 2 Fl| 8 Uk A 2,829 2,631
281,427 253,915

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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B35 R 2R B EE (AR)
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -EMBRARKZEFEEE)

(CONTINUED)
REEFEHHBA

Revenue from contracts with customers

Disaggregated revenue information

(i) DHFWAER

Solutions and
Integration
Services
BRERR
&R R
HK$’000

TERT

Application
Services

P& FA AR %%
HK$’000

TERT

Total

#t
HK$’000

FTET

For the year ended BE-—Z-N\%+=A

31 December 2018 =+—HLEFE
Segments oyt
Types of goods or services & 5 =6 AR 7% 8 Rl
Sales of goods and provision of software, $5& & & M IR &4 -

GETS and BPO services BITETE 5 Ri% &

B MRINA PR TS 43,770 18,523 62,293

Provision of software implementation R EE i N B

and related services, IT solution 7% ~ B EHRERER

implementation and related services 77 R E e & 48 PR 75 54,954 53,544 108,498
Maintenance FiiE 55,129 52,678 107,807
Total revenue from contracts REEFELH

with customers FEV N 153,853 124,745 278,598
Geographical markets & ™ %
Hong Kong and others B R HA 97,313 113,204 210,517
Mainland China AR A 56,540 11,541 68,081
Total revenue from contracts KEBFELH

with customers FEN N 153,853 124,745 278,598
Timing of revenue recognition [ ON ST
Goods and services transferred at RE—RNHEZER R

a point in time AR 7% 43,770 18,523 62,293
Services transferred over time 7 — B By ] (A 838 58 AR 755 110,083 106,222 216,305
Total revenue from contracts REEFELH

with customers I A 153,853 124,745 278,598

R R R R E AR QA
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5.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

Sale of goods and provision of software, GETS and
BPO services

Provision of software implementation and related services,
IT solution implementation and related services

Maintenance

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods and provision of software, GETS and BPO services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days
from delivery, where payment in advance is normally required.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60 days
from the date of billing.

IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the nursing period as
the Group's entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

5. A B AR W (&)

REEFEHNBA (&)

(i) DHFBWAESR (B
TRETHFABSHONAHERE
BRI S BRI D R AR

2018
—E—N\F

HK$'000
FERx
FFAREHIANAENEER
WA
HESmMEREMN  BFET

B 5 R M EBRIZINH RS 2,725
RESEEEMEBERS - B
R g R 7 2 E e M A8 B8 AR 75 17,682
HETE 35,969
56,376
(i) BHEE
ERASEREHE TR E R M a0
T

HERip RIEHEN - BIFETE
SRR E RSN HIRE
BRBEENE R,/ RGN EEK -
MR —RBE R EFT30E60H R
B —REFZERMAK -

TE R B B 1t 2 P B AR 7%

JE #) & 1 BE 12t AR 765 &9 Br R 22 K
MR — /% B F L ARE B B ET30
Z60HREIH -

BB RAER T RE 1 R AR IR %
& %) B {1 8 12 1 AR 755 ) B ) 2 A -
MR —f& B HARE B HEF308
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HAW AR =5 (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHINBA (&)
(continued)
(ii) Performance obligations (continued) (i) BHEEGE)
Maintenance services HEERTE
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services BRI E (ERE TR (AR 7% A e R 2R K -
are rendered and payment in advances are normally required MEARE R ERNRERB AT
before rendering the services. Maintenance service contracts o HERBEAELNBE —FHRIE
are for periods of one year, or are billed based on the time EENFRRADIERE -
incurred.
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance RZE—NF+ZA=1+—HBHE
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 ERTRYVEE (KRBT RE
December 2018 are as follows: TR ZERFN AT
HK$’000
FTET
Within one year —FR 56,954
All the remaining performance obligations are expected to be FMEBRTRAEETESEBEN —FA
recognised within one year. The amounts disclosed above do R L BERSBEITEEZR
not include variable consideration which is constrained. HIRT KB -
2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$/000
FHEx T
Other income and gains, net H MU A R K2 558
Bank interest income RITH BUA 7,274 3,849
Tax refund received Fr 4 [B] 8 7% 1,741 4,354
Dividend income from listed investments at BAFELERARZ £/
fair value through profit or loss & RS A 675 689
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of property, HEWZE - KERZEIRE
plant and equipment, net Z W (1) F5E 1 (18)
Others H A, 393 390

10,084 9,264

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRTAER

AEBZBBADENEME, GEA) T

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

P EI8
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET T
Cost of inventories sold BHEFEKAE 62,533 56,722
Cost of services provided B IR AR A A 58,899 53,669
Depreciation* e 12 2,051 2,833
Amortisation of other intangible assets** H b 8 B g 15 6,024 6,024
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HE¥ « BE KR EEE
plant and equipment, net 2B () F5 (1) 18
Minimum lease payments under operating ~ 1RIE&EHE 2 HEEE
leases IE 7,021 6,246
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ERED B 1,320 1,220
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERNHZ (TRREES
directors' remuneration — note 7)": B —KizE7)
Wages, salaries and allowances TE - #He kER 116,136 108,904
Equity-settled share-based payment f% e 45 E DARR (9
expense A 1,091 200
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREHET B K (E5E
(defined contribution schemes) HRETE) 5,799 5,293
Less: Amount capitalised in other W RNEMEREE
intangible assets BERz o5 (7,221) (3,680)
115,805 110,717
Impairment of financial and contract M REHEEREBETEE
assets, net:
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEUE 2R OB EF 5 18 1,201 345
Impairment of contract assets EREERE 21 68 -
Direct operating expenses (including RIS 2 IREME
repairs and maintenance) arising from BELERZ (B
rental-earning investment properties HAS R HEE) 94 132
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AFERE (W) F58 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit R AFELEZARZ
or loss WS EE 384 (1,380)
Investment properties "EYE 13 (4,406) (3,590)
Interest income from treasury investments ~ EEFS IR E 2 | BUT A (79) (79)

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. MRBIADZF (&)
@ Depreciation for the year of HK$60,000 (2017: HK$33,000) is included in “Cost i REFEAFE60000BT(ZFT—LF:
of sales and services” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or 33,000 70) MAMRE Bmx 2 [HE RRE
loss. BRAR] A o
= Amortisation of other intangible assets for the year of HK$6,024,000 s NG R EL A T B B 8 6,024,000 7T (=
(2017: HK$6,024,000) is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the T — L 14F 60240008 70) MALZEBER
consolidated statement of profit or loss. ZIEMAZIA -
, Inclusive of research and development cost for application software " BEEBERSRMHE R R RAZEKR
products of HK$13,512,000 (2017: HK$11,555,000). 13,512,000 7 (= & — 4+ 4 : 11,555,000
JT) e
2 Inclusive of an amount of HK$58,899,000 (2017: HK$53,669,000) classified t BESIEA LM BRERBKA] 2 H58
under “Cost of services provided” above. 58,899,000/ 7T (= F — £ & : 53,669,000 7
JT) e
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EE%HM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules FANEZFHREBEEBBEIGMEBRA
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong AlFEAH EMHRA ([ ETRE]) - FEBRF]
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of 15451 5 383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~ () Bz () 15 K2 & A (#
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BESNRER) ROIE 2HBHEBLT

(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—44F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FET
Fees: we
Executive directors HITES - =
Independent non-executive directors B IEHITES 478 450
478 450
Other emoluments; HAnE< -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREBEYHA = 6,903 6,553
Bonuses* TEAT* 1,914 1,913
Equity-settled share-based payment expense* RIELEE RN AR 767 419
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BAREFIFT B 5K
(defined contribution schemes) (TREE TR 69 69
9,653 8,954
10,131 9,404

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined on a discretionary basis.

In prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted shares of the
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of their services
to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

Independent non-executive directors:
Ha Shu Tong
Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the independent non-executive directors during
the current and prior years.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BYIFRITES -
B
FE%R
TRE

7.

ESHM (&)

(a)

ARRETEEEEREIEEE 2 LA
5 -

PBEFE  RBEARAZE R G
BEE RETHRBGHZART &HTE
FERBREANAEEFAREREEXAR
AAERGIRD  BRAE - THBERRUE
BERME20 - ZEFEERGBM 2 AFETD
RELBHEE YCRBBHAEERS
REER - Mt ARNFEMBRERZ SEIT
EERER EXEEHMEER -

BAYFITES
FA XN THEIFRATEETZHE
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx AT

158 150

158 150

162 150

478 450

PR EXHBESN RAFERBE

FRYEBALMBEN TELIFNTE
FIZME -
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7.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors
The fees and other emoluments paid to executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Q 151

EEHM (&)

(b) BITESE
FRN - IMNFHRITESE2B/ERE
&

Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances share-based Retirement
and benefits payment benefit scheme Total
in kind Bonuses expense  contributions remuneration
e RER BREEE RINER
BENA G A BROIMAMEX HE 23 Mesm
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER THT THET
2018 —2-N\%§
Executive directors; WITES:
Ng Cheung Shing REB 2,751 913 183 18 3,865
Leung King San, Sunny REH 305 - - 15 320
Cheung Wai Lam RER 2,197 501 361 18 3,077
Ng Kwok Keung REl5 1,650 500 223 18 2,391
6,903 1,914 767 69 9,653
2017 S 2
Executive directors: HTES
Ng Cheung Shing R 2,661 852 - 18 3531
Leung King San, Sunny 2 300 - - 15 315
Cheung Wai Lam RIER 2,092 561 339 18 3,010
Ng Kwok Keung REI58 1,500 500 80 18 2,098
6,553 1913 419 69 8954

The directors’ emoluments paid to Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
included a housing allowance of HK$2,471,000 (2017:
HK$2,381,000) which was remunerated by way of rental
reimbursement. The rentals of the related property were paid
directly by Mr. Ng to the landlord, which is a company jointly
controlled by Mr. Ng and one of his family members.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and prior
years.

SHFREBAEZESHESEE
BE2471,0008 L (Z T —EF
238100078 70) 2 X 2R U &
BEZIAIN -EEYWEZHSE
HREEEESNTEE MzE
FTHRHREENREEF —RRL
B ERZES 2 AR e

REAFERBEFE EFLEN
KRB REWEEAIHM 2 5 -
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—-HA=+—H

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2017
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
to the financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining two (2017: two) non-director highest paid employees
for the year are as follows:

TEmREFMES

FRA - IEESFMEERE=2(=F
—EF ZRER REZFHMFEH
KRB RARMTE7 - EfrmA (ZF—15F:
MB) &xERFMIFESREE ZFRAFIF
BT

Salaries and allowances e KOER

Equity-settled share-based payment expense AR 4 E AR (0 A B2

Bonuses TE4T

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREF T SR
(defined contribution schemes) (EEERErE)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —E—+4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T
1,832 1,931

181 60

1,128 350

18 36

3,159 2377

FMNFUATHEI E=SSMNEESRE
AT

Number of employees

EE AR
2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—tF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = Z= 1,000,000 78 7T = 1
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T 2 2,000,000 7% 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED) 8.

In the prior year, restricted shares of the Company, subject to certain
vesting conditions, were awarded to one non-director highest paid

‘(:’153

TEREHNES (&)

RBEFE  READF 2GRN R
Bstd RETHEBHRAEZERT  —%

employee in respect of his services to the Group, under the restricted By MEEEEEERERNAEEAR

share award scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
restricted shares, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director highest paid

employee’s remuneration disclosures.

9. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions

in which the Group operates.

Current — Hong Kong

Charge for the year

Overprovision in prior years
Current - Elsewhere

Charge for the year
Deferred (note 26)

Total tax charge for the year

BEFMIENR -

9. FiiE®H

FRERIZERREGTE -

HREERANRR BRI - E—FFF
BEN B RRMEE29 - ZEB R BB
ZRFEDNEHAREE - YEREB
HAERRARER Mt AXFERBER
RZEBNCBER LXERHHFES

BEBFBRIIBERAFENREBEEL
AR R R 165% (T —+F :
165%) EH B4 o E it [@ B R B m F 2
RIETREBEAEBCEEEAERR 7]

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
BNH— &5

FARNEH 7,663 7,905

BEFE BB (1,171) (430)
BNER—E fth b [

FREH 1,366 775
PRIE (FT5E26) (686) (1,733)
FARAHIBL KB 7,172 6,517

Bl Zm e EERA A —T— \FFER
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

Frig#® ()

ERANEARRARERBOHERRLE
SR ERE EENEREAEMER
BADG A 2 A H - IR ERRERFE
ZHB HHERAT

9. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 9.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries operate/are domiciled to the tax
charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTEx T
Profit before tax R 54 A g 7 75,200 60,846
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 165% 12 & B /AEHRE 165% (ZF—+
(2017:16.5%) F 1 165%) 5T H 2 HIA 12,408 10,040
Effect of withholding tax of 5% on the RAEEFBIMBE AR 29I
distributable profits of the Group's PRC A2 5% B 2 &
subsidiaries 570 (665)
Lower tax rates for overseas subsidiaries TFHNHTE A A R(R R (405) (263)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous %t 38 £ 2AfE 2 BN HAF: 18 /E
periods FHEE (1,171) (430)
Income not subject to tax BAERBBA (2,543) (2,062)
Expenses not deductible for tax DEE b 603 411
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EABERBBIEEE - ©)
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIHEE 38 154
Others H At (2,328) (659)
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate AEBRERMEGTE 2 FHIE
X i 7,172 6517

Under the income tax laws of the People’s Republic of China (the

REBEPEARKNE ((HE])AEHE

PE—MRBIZH (T —+HF :25%) 2
MERGMEZEMSHE ((REMSHE]D) - R
AEEMBEFE  AEEETHRNRTRH
5 TE B R B9 R BB B A B £ AE R R RS
BETI0NE 15%EBELEMEHRHERN

“PRC"), enterprises are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT")
generally at a rate of 25% (2017: 25%). In the current and prior
years, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries operating in specific
development zones of the PRC were granted preferential CIT rates of
10% to 15% by the relevant tax authorities.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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10.

11.

DIVIDENDS

Interim — HKS$0.09 (2017: interim and special
dividends of HK$0.10) per ordinary share

Less: Dividend for shares held under the
Company's restricted share
award scheme

Proposed final — HK$0.12 (2017: HK$0.07) per
ordinary share
Less: Dividend for shares held under the
Company's restricted share
award scheme

Proposed special — Nil (2017: HK$0.05) per
ordinary share
Less: Dividend for shares held under the
Company's restricted share
award scheme

The proposed final dividend for the year will be payable in cash
and is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

10. RE

AR B — E AR E AR 0.09 8 T
ZE—+tF  FHEFRIRE
0.1077T)

B AREA R R AR HI IR 5 42
FTEIRA 2 BRD TSR &

B AR E — TR L @A 01275 T
(ZZ—t%F :007/87T)

B ARIEA D R AR HI IR 5 42
FHEIEE 2R ETER A

BORE R —ZREBREE T
(ZZ—t4%F : 005/87T)

B AREA R R AR HI A5 42E
FrEIEB 2RO B E

2018
—E—N\E§

HK$’000
TET

Q 155

2017
—E—tF
HKS$'000
FHBIT

22,454 24,420
(232) (193)
22,222 24,227
29,939 17,094
(340) (121)
29,599 16,973
- 12,210

= (87)

= 12,123
51,821 53,323

% JIEEE -

RERZFRRBREAGARE M - &
ARARBBERNERERRBFASHE

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. BRI EERBRRELAERE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT F

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
244,272,947 (2017: 242,229,239) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to exclude the shares held under the restricted share award scheme

of the Company.

MR EER AR

EREAABFNEBNRESA AL AR
fE R FEMR FNRA R FEADBETE B
DN 39 88244272047 0% (ZF —+ 4 :
242229239 %) 5T E - WL HIBR AR R AR
FIRK (D BB ET 2B T AT R D (EH T -

—2—\FFH
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares granted under the share option schemes
of the Company into ordinary shares and the deemed vesting of
all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:
Earnings
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on

profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

M. BARIEERBRRELCEREA

BRETRNSEIRES QR EEBR
REGEFRENETE - 5T EIA 2 @R
MEFHRSHESRERBNMAB 2 F
REBTEERHEE  URBRRAER
BARBBEREAIROZEAEEER
BRES/ETESIRBRBEBIRE - AR
RIFA R BB R B SRE T 81 2 B
BREEERARBMDREIERBE
ARABREET AT 2L B IEF
BE -

AAEEREALETRNMAEENT
27
BREAREERNIZE QR E B

REMEBMFTE -

&)

Number of shares

R E

2018

—B-N\F

Weighted average number of ordinary shares TEEREABFAMAFRE

in issue during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

BITE BN T H

Effect of dilution — weighted average number a2 — T RIRMETHE

of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

RIBEAR R BB R # Ak () 22 Eh =t 2l
Company's restricted share award scheme B 2 BRI AR

244,272,947 242,229,239
566,154 753412
244,839,101 242,982,651
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BERREE
Computer Furniture,
Leasehold equipment fixtures
land and Leasehold and and other Motor
buildings improvements software equipment vehicles Total
HE HE ERRE BA RE
THRET NEEE k&#  REMRE RE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TE T THET TET THET
31 December 2018 —E-N\E
+ZA=t+-AH
At 31 December 2017 and WZE—t&+=A
at 1 January 2018; =+—BRRZZ
“NE-A-8:
Cost KA 1,213 6,856 5,037 2,156 647 15,909
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (484) (5,651) (3,847) (1,631) (346) (11,959)
Net carrying amount REFE 729 1,205 1,190 525 301 3,950

At 1 January 2018, net of WZE-\§—A-H"

accumulated depreciation R 2IE 729 1,205 1,190 525 301 3,950
Additions NE = 14 1,124 104 - 1,242
Disposals HE = = (7) (M = 8)
Depreciation provided FARERE

during the year (34) (858) (679) (317) (163) (2,051)
Exchange realignment AR - (19) (1) 7 - (13)

At 31 December 2018, netof ~ M=ZT—\F
accumulated depreciation +-A=+-8"

R 2ETE 695 342 1,627 318 138 3,120
At 31 December 2018: RZE—N\F
+ZA=+-B:
Cost AR 1,213 6,808 5,873 2,197 647 16,738
Accumulated depreciation  Z&HTE (518) (6,466) (4,246) (1,879) (509) (13,618)
Net carrying amount EEFE 695 342 1,627 318 138 3,120

MERGEEEGRAR =2 \FFR
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BERRZE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Computer Furniture,
Leasehold equipment fixtures
land and Leasehold and and other Motor
buildings  improvements software equipment vehicles
HE HE BMEE KM RE
THRET MERE kB REMRE "E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TAT TAT TET
31 December 2017 “B-t%
+=A=t+-H
At 1 January 2017: RZE—+F—F—R:
Cost AR 1213 6817 4248 2102 647 15027
Accurnulated depreciation 2EE (451) (4127) (3172) (1233) (184) (9167)
Net carrying amount BEFE 762 2,690 1076 869 463 5,860

At 1 January 2017, net of WZE—t&5—A—-H"

accumulated depreciation % 2E 762 2690 1076 869 463 5,860
Additions NE - 3 855 2% - 914
Disposals HE = (20 9 () = (34)
Depreciation provided FRTERE

during the year (33) (1534) (738) (366) (162) (2833)
Exchange realignment R - 36 6 1 = 43

At31December 2017, netof R=FE—+%F
accumulated depreciation +-A=1+-8"

MR 2EHE 729 1,205 1,190 525 301 3950
At 31 December 2017: RZE—tF
+ZA=+-B:
Cost AR 1213 6,856 5037 2156 647 15,909
Accumulated depreciation  BFHHTE (484) (5,651) (3847) (1,631) (346) (11959)
Net carrying amount FRE A 729 1,205 1,190 525 301 3,950

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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13. REWE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZKRmE
Net gain from fair value adjustments N ERE 2 W FE
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZHA=1T—HZEKHEE

The Group's investment properties consist of three (2017: three)
commercial properties in Mainland China and one (2017: one)
industrial property in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of two
classes of asset, i.e,, commercial and industrial, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2018 based on valuations
performed by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$75,661,000. Each year, the
Group's Chief Financial Officer decides, after proper approval, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s Chief Financial Officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 31(a) to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2018, one of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$64,200,000 (2017: HK$60,000,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on page 207.

2018 2017

—E-N\E§ —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHxT FHET

71,255 67,665

6 4,406 3,590
75,661 71,255

AEBZEREMERE=B (ZE—+
FECE)MRNPERN CEEDER —
BH(ZE—tF: —B)URBEZIEY
¥ -ARAEZCRESEYMEZMEE -
HHRERBREEREMEAMERR (B
BMEMTIHE)EE - R_ZE—N\F+=A
=t+t—H AEEZREMERBUEE
AEREEMEE B SMITER A A#T
2 15 1E & i 575,661,000 7T ° 7K 5= & Bf
HHRERE REBEBZIER B§F%
EHNEMEERM B EAREEME ZINPHE -
FRIZEREMIE MG BE  BUMK
ERERFEEKE - REBE ARG
EMBERPHRFETBRERANTZ
HEMFAZHEBRIRGAELERETH

Spo A A
IRETRR ©

BRENMXERBEELEMELMATE=T
E—THFBERBERMHERRM 3G °

R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—8  KEE[
KRB B 2 H PR —IE R HEE 4 & 64,200,000
BILZIEEYE (ZZT —L4F : 60,000,000
B EARBSETAEE 2 —KIBTTH
BVEHAR o

AEBEREYME 2K —FFBHRNE 207
e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 13. REW% (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEESREE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRETASEREMEZ A TEFAES
the Group's investment properties: WBRHE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using
RoB-NE+=A=t+-B2AFERAATEEGE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
SEB TS EATEHE EBEATAHEE
BE W ARE WA BB

(E18) ($28) (%38) it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FBx FTBL THET
Recurring fair value BEMENFEGE -
measurement for:
Commercial properties [HEZ/ES - - 11,461 11,461
Industrial property TEYE - - 64,200 64,200

= = 75,661 75,661

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
RZE—+tF+-A=1T—HZRAFEFERNATEEFZ
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (EYEP) (Level 3)
iR EAABR BEATTHR
wE ) A\ 2UE PN ¢

(F118) (F28) (%3E) b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Recurring fair value BEEAFEGE :
measurement for:
Commercial properties [EEL2ES - = 11,255 11,255
Industrial property TEME - = 60,000 60,000
- - 71,255 71,255
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RAFEE FIEEF2EZHETENTFE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 B 2SRRI EQATEF=EEANE D
(2017: Nil). FIB(ZT—LF: |\) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 S 2 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 13. REW=E (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EEREE (FE)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 FRAATESHREEFEIBNAFER
of the fair value hierarchy: SHER
Commercial Industrial
properties property
[SELY/ES T¥EYE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHER
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+F—A—BZKRHEE 10,665 57,000
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RiBmPERZ A FEAR K
recognised in profit or loss R 590 3,000
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZBE—+tF+A=1+—HBK
and 1 January 2018 —E-N\F—A—HZEHEE 11,255 60,000
Net gain from a fair value adjustment R8P ER 2 A FEAR K
recognised in profit or loss FEE 206 4,200
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\FE+A=+—RH2Z
FREE 11,461 64,200
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key TERAEHEEMHEGHBERAZHERER
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FERABERE :

Fair value Valuation Significant
hierarchy technique unobservable inputs

DFEER EXFRABR

RE fEER % PN ¢

Commercial properties Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot RMB1,121 to RMB1,115 to
[EESUES £3 5% BYHRZAGER RMB2,583 RMB2,184

AR¥1121 52 ARE1II5TE
AR¥2583 7T AREK2184TC

Industrial property Level 3 Market comparable method Prevailing price per square foot HK$11,049 to HK$10,899 to
IXME F3E % L BUA BYHRZEGTER HK$14,159 HK$11936

11,049 T2 108998 L E

14,1597 1t 11936/87T

Under the market comparable method (or market comparable RIBT IS A L BUE (S5 Al LB 5 &) -
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable MR FETI AR LR R 5 BB LE(d 5T
transactions. The market comparable approach is based upon the TS AL 7 & AR R R BB ER &L -
principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay BEBERBTERMEINRBEZME
more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute ZALBRERNERZ 205 AEEK
property. The unit of comparison applied by the Group is the price RAzhREMAFBTFAR(FARD) ZE

per square foot (“sq.ft."). 1% o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—-HA=+—H

14. GOODWILL

14, BHE

HK$'000
THAT

31 December 2017 —Z2—t¥+=A=+—8H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2017 and RZE—+tF—HA—BRZZT—tF
31 December 2017 +_H:+ EIZW;"&EEWE 134,485
HK$’000
TET
31 December 2018 —2-N\¥+=-A=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2018 and RZE—NF-—HA—BRZZ-N\F
31 December 2018 +_H:+— E!Zﬁ%%'i&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ 134,485

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill
in respect of business combinations which occurred prior to 2001 to
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising

from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30
in 2001, was HKS$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2017 and 2018.

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units for impairment testing:

Application services cash-generating unit; and

Solutions and integration services cash-generating unit.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

14. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 14. HE (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units are as follows:

HEREE

Carrying amount of goodwill

o B Rl (B R o ()
AREERSELBN 2 FBRAGEMT -

Solutions and

Application Services Integration Services Total
&R R BRERRERBRS At
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“g-N\f | ZE tF| —2-\F| 2 £ -T-\F | % %
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER TET TER TET
132,462 132462 2,023 2023 134,485 134485
ERARBREEEEN

Application services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the application services cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections approved by senior management covering
a five-year period and beyond that extrapolated with a zero (2017:
zero) percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 18% (2017: 19%) and the cash flow projections
are determined based on past performance and management'’s
expectations for the market development.

Solutions and integration services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the solutions and integration services
cash-generating unit has also been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections approved by
senior management covering a five-year period and beyond that
extrapolated with a zero (2017: zero) percentage growth rate. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18% (2017:
19%) and the cash flow projections are determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

ERARGHRSELEMZATKREEEER
BEEREEMEE ZEREENFNEAD
REEEMLEZAFHRSRETRA R
EFREFE(CE—LF BDASHLERR
HEEMAE -BREREBUMABNRES
18% (ZF—tF:19%) MRERER
RDBEBEXRAMNEREEHMSERZ
BHMETE °

BREFRREBRBRBRSELEEN
BRIRTT B R K AR TSI © B A B 2 AT
EeENERECHAEEETE  ZERE
BRAFAERREREMEZ AFHESR
EFEARARTE(CE—1tE : D)EDL
BEXRBEEME - REeRETERFTER
WIRERI18% (ZFT—+HF :19%) ' ME
EREBANRERAARRELEEEEM
BERECTERMETE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

14. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 14. BE& (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Solutions and integration services cash-generating unit
(continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
application services and the solutions and integration services cash-
generating units for 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted revenue

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
revenue is the revenue achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, adjusted for management’s expected change in market
demand and customer base.

Budgeted gross margins

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates
The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B RS R AR B AL ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2018

Costat 1 January 2018,
net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment
Additions
Amortisation provided
during the year

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

Deferred
development

costs*

R SE B B PR AR *
HK$'000
TER

—E-N\E
+=A=t+-H

R-F-NF-A—H2
PR HNBR RETEE R

5. Hib BIL & E

Customer
Software
BH
HK$’000
FTHET

relationships
EFB#&
HK$'000
FTERT

Q 165

Total
st
HK$’000
FTHET

BB 4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706
NE 10,380 = = 10,380
RNEREHHEE

= (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
R-E—\F

+=-A=+—8° 14,507 8,978 30,577 54,062
R-Z—N\F

+=ZA=+—-8:

DN 27,533 14,767 43,681 85,981

RETEERRE

(13,026) (5,789) (13,104) (31,919)

RmEFE 14,507 8,978 30,577 54,062

Bt RS EEER AR —T— \FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
51 35 3 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15. HttEFE E=E (&)
Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total
i JIE A B A AR HEHE ;i Bt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FAT FET
31 December 2017 —E—tF
+=RA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2017, RZE—+F-—H—HZ
net of accumulated BXAS 0Bk 2ETEEE K
amortisation and impairment HE = 12,290 39,313 51,603
Additions NE 4,127 = = 4127
Amortisation provided REGHHRBE
during the year - (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+tF
+-B=+—~H 4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706
At 31 December 2017 and at R-_ZT—+tF
1 January 2018: +ZA=+—HBk
—E-NF—-HA—H:
Cost B 17,153 14,767 43,681 75,601
Accumulated amortisation and R RORE
impairment (13,026) (4133) (8,736) (25,895)
Net carrying amount REFE 4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706
o During the year, additions of other intangible assets of HK$10,380,000 (2017: * FR - HMEREERE 103800007 7T (=
HK$4,127,000) were developed internally. T— 4 14,127,000 7C) JhH A SR E o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

‘<:i167

16. AIHHERE

2018 2017
—E—N\E§ —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR

Club membership debenture, at fair value

17. INVENTORIES

Fref#Es - 1,780

17. &

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TET T

Work in progress R R

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

723 1,433

18. EIRE B R

Trade receivables JEUNE 5 R
Impairment VERED

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or depending
on the specific arrangements with individual customers, and may
include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit. For
those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period is
generally within 90 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond 90
days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

2018 2017
—EBE-—N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHIT
47,104 43,724
(3,532) (2,361)
43,572 41,363

PLREGEKTE B A MR = RS B
FEREM S @ AEEZR S KK E E(E
BE KSR T ERER TP ZFRILHEmE
AR BEERMR - BAMNKKRERER - 5t
ZEUBRRERNETRBZERME ' &
EBEEH—RTZR0X  HHKETIERB
HIHRE AEERIEREBIBOX
RAREERBFERFLEREES - A&
E—EREIERERER ZERE ZER -
SHREERENEHERNABFIELHS - A
EEWER IS AT A TR E
HEMEENESE - BKEZERIL T
FTAIE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—-HA=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18. BWE Z KM (&)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the RFERBEER  BKEZEREFIRRE
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, A R 2 R D AT A T -
is as follows:

2018 2017
—EBE-—N\EFE —E—+4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FATT
Within 1 month —EAR 24,440 29,190
1to 3 months —Z=={&A 12,973 9,366
4 to 6 months YA 3,780 1,084
7 to 12 months +=+=1@A 2,379 1,723
43,572 41,363

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade EWE SRR EBIEREESMT :

receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET T
At 1 January n—H—H 2,361 1975
Impairment losses, net (note 6) WEEEFE (f5te) 1,201 345
Exchange realignment M W, (30) 41
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 3,532 2,361
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended E-F-N\F+=H=+-—H
31 December 2018 TFERBEEEBNBEHREENE
5% R B
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using REWmE B RRABHERETREDT
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision NErERBEEERE - B#EXTDER B
rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects reasonable HEEE - Zet EREN RS BHAIER
and supportable information that is available at the reporting BRBEEIE - AR R R A R
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future TBRAMEERAEER - —BMmE @ Bl
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if B SRFNAaEREE —F R BETRRGE
past due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement %077 ) Eh Bl - LA 8 o
activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 S 2 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —=— \F+_A=1+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18. BEWWE Z IR (&)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended BE-_Z-N\F+=-H=+-—H
31 December 2018 (continued) LHFERBEEABVMKEREENE
FORE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TRET A& B 5 R B AR B AT 5 A FE UK
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: B HRFNEERREL

Past due

B

Credit-
impaired Less than 1to3 Over
receivables Current 1 month months 3 months

EERE
WA B &R —BAR —ZE=@EA =@EANL

At31December2018 R=ZF—N\fF

+=A=+—A8
Expected credit loss rate T8 2= B B8 & 100% 0.10% 042% 0.50% 15.55% 0.75%
Gross carryingamount BRI 42 {E
(HK$'000) (F#7T) 3,200 26,316 8,863 7,229 1496 47,104
Expected credit losses ~ TEHA{Z & 18
(HK$'000) (F&T) 3,200 26 37 36 233 3,532
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 BEE-_F—+tF+=-HA=+—H
December 2017 I FEREEBETTERE39H
AR
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables, RZE—tF+ZA=+—H  LilifElk
which was measured based on incurred credit losses under HKAS BHRRERE RBEEEGTERE39
39, as at 31 December 2017 was a provision for individually impaired RIEBEEEEEBEGE) 2EERND
trade receivables of HK$2,361,000 with a carrying amount before WAE 2 EWE 5 BR 5 2,361,00078 7T
provision of HK$2,361,000. H B & R BRE (B /% 2,361,000 8 7T ©
The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—HEARERE
related to amounts that were long outstanding and/or customers JEWE 5 R R HR R AN FREE KBk
that were in financial difficulties/in default. MHEE REZEFPER -

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18. EWWE ZERF (&)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
that were not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
under HKAS 39 is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired K 180 HR 75 R (B
Less than 1 month past due # DR —1{E A
1 to 3 months past due wmEl—==1{ A
4to 6 months past due 460 HA Y 2= X {E A
Over 6 months past due BEASE A A £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a
number of diversified customers, including certain departments/units
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR"), for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number
of independent customers that had a good reputation and/or good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as there
had not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.
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31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

Q 171

19. ANFRIE BEREMERRK

RECEIVABLES 15
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHEx T T
Prepayments TR 5RIE 10,493 10,662
Deposits and other receivables B e R H b FEUGRIR 6,766 4,804
17,259 15,466
Portion classified as current assets DERRBEENS (14,999) (15,466)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERDEEN 2,260 =

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to deposits
and receivables for which there was no recent history of default. The
Group has thereby concluded that the expected credit loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the rates
for the deposits and other receivables. Since the deposits and other
receivables are related to receivables which are still in current and the
payment is not due, the expected credit loss rates of deposits and
other receivables are assessed to be minimal.

20. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses to date
Less: Progress billings

B R R S 18
B REEFRHRE

Gross amounts due from contract customers
Gross amounts due to contract customers

FEW & M P RIRARER -
e & HEPRIARR -

i EEMEB I HIRRE - 8FER L
MEHRAN 2 BTG EERZS MT Y 8
RECskZ ERYHIBER - At - NEER
7 REEZERFNEHEEBHREER
& REMEUHIENL REIEEE - AR
12 o At 8 Wk TR BT 88 B ER e e s R
FEHREBENREARY  #IRe REME
WRIBENRREEBBREFEAEE -

20. REE Y

2018
—B-N\F

2017
ZE—+F
HK$'000
FHT

HK$’000
FHB

S CEERKRA T MR

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

20. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES (CONTINUED) 20. RIEEH (&)

Amounts due from contract customers that were not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that had a good track
record/relationship with the Group and/or for whom there was no
recent history of default. Based on past experience, the directors of
the Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
was necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

271. CONTRACT ASSETS

WEREZ BE A HOEFPFRESMRA
SEBERIFNFRTE EAREERTH
BR/SCERY BERCHEIBILTFE
B - IRBBELR  ARAEFRIBA
R SREMRELRERE  LIRREE
BRUVESBAEE  MABSRIDERS
AEHKE - AEEYERZEEHRTE
ERAERRAEMERRIRE

21. BHNEE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF-N\F —F—tF

+tZRA=+—H —A—H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Contract assets arising from: BHEERBUATSIA :
Sale of goods and provision HES MR AE -
of software, GETS and BPO BRETFESRBE R
services EBRIEINH AR TES
Provision of software REHGEER
implementation and EEARRTS - BRI
related services, IT solutions R RE R
implementation and related 18R AR %
services
Maintenance services HEARTS
Total contract assets EREERTE

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from
the provision of software and related services as the receipt of
consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract assets
in 2018 was the result of the increase in the ongoing provision of
software and related services at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

21. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as

at 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Q 173

. BREE (8)

RZB-NFE+A=+—0 " 5HEE
B TR R Bl sk A B R AT

HK$’000
TERT

Within one year —F R 20,627

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract BREEZBEREEFSNT :
assets are as follows:

2018
=B-N\F
HK$’000
TR
At beginning of year F7) -
Impairment losses (note 6) WEEE (FizEe) 68
At end of year Fax 68
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using NEZ S H H R A BB B[S TRE DT -
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision WA ERMEEEFR -T2 NEEERD
rates for the measurement of the expected credit losses of the CEEEBENBRERTTENRNEKREZE ZERTE
contract assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the HEEBERERZGTEMAEL  BEA
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same customer SEHEEREWEZEAREHRAZEE
bases. The provision rates of contract assets are based on days past e SHNEENBREXRTIENBE R &
due of trade receivables for groupings of various customer segments MAEEUEEERXNTRREELS 24
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects reasonable and BIMETE c Z:tE H /A RMNIRE HH 7]
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about SBHAEBATSEIE - & AN KRR KK HE
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic BEBRNESIE LA AR o
conditions.
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. There was Pt B ESEmamEATRE c S A EENIH
no recent history of default for the contract assets. Since the contract WHZEL D c ARASNEEENELRS
assets are related to receivables which are still in current and the BEREENEKRERER e EE
payment is not due, the expected credit loss rates of contract assets HWIEHZEEREERLETEHAKK -

are assessed to be minimal.
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT ORLOSS

Debt investments, at fair value
Listed equity investments, at fair value

DER/RBEELD
DERIERBEERD

Portion classified as current assets

Portion classified as non-current assets

The debt investments were designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as they are managed and their performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the
investment is provided internally on that basis to the Group's key
management personnel.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets
at 31 December 2018 and were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's debt and listed equity
investments with a carrying value of approximately HK$12,697,000
(2017: HK$13,401,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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BRAFEEZEHRE
BRFERE 2 EMRARE

22, §ﬂ$ﬁﬁ§$§§)\,ﬂﬁz,ﬂﬁ§ﬁ

2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
4,633 2,544
10,164 10,857
14,797 13,401
(10,164) (10,857)
4,633 2,544

EREEREDNRERERARERELRE
R AT EEEEE RERER - @E
BERBRAFERLBEARIMBEE
MEBZEFREZER T REABELER AR
SEEEEEABRPREY -

EARAREEHAR_ZE-NFE+ A
ZSt—BZRBEE X0 BARRATE
RBRARCMBEE RA/ZFRE
REFEEE -

RZE—NE+—A=+—"H Xx&£E
BREE ) A12,697,0008 70 (Z T —+4F :
13,401,000/870) 2 BB R LR AKZED
BRESETALEEZ —RIRITRE (EIEKIR o
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

23. BEREFRSEEUREE
HRITER

2018 2017
—g-nE | 2 tF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx TAT

Cash and bank balances He RIRTTA R 135,329 135,591
Time deposits TE HATF 5K 122,316 112,027
257,645 247,618

Less: Pledged time deposits for performance W BIRIT R 2 BARE

bonds/guarantees issued by banks EREEREHAER (826) (536)
Pledged deposit for banking facility granted FERITHEL ZRITRE
by a bank* #8380 77 50 ¢ (1,274) (535)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the STAREMBRRAKRZEE R
consolidated statement of financial position ERBEEE 255,545 246,547
* The bank facility has not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period. @ RREBEGEER  WREEAZIRITHE -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to approximately HK$103,001,000 (2017: HK$98,057,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one and six months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RFEHBLEER  REBUARE (A
REDFAEZRERBITAEGRTESHE
K47 A103,001,0008 70 (ZF —EF -
98,057,000/ 7L) - ARBETAEHRKLIRA
H i EE - (BRER R INE S 2 K5
NMaEE  EERNESERT  AE@EE
BB IFEITINEEE 2 RITIE AR
HinBEMING o

RITRERBEERRITERMNEZZEHN
KB - RHEMERNERANF—=
NEATE - REARKERKRESF KM
E o WIRAREHERERF XL - R
TRBLEHFFAFER EERFRL
HAAP e RS 8k 2 BRTT e

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24. BENESERER  HEMRKE
ACCRUALS X st 7R
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx T T
Trade payables FETE 5 IR 24,533 25,306
Other payables H A 8 FRIE 27,936 29,874
Accruals FEFTSRIE 21,627 19,094
74,096 74,274
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RBEHELEER  ENESERIRRE
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HZBRESTAT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHEx FHT
Within 1 month —(EAR 18,045 21,493
1 to 3 months —Z=f@A 4,749 2,807
410 6 months EESWNEPS 1,331 547
Over 6 months ~E A LA E 408 459
24,533 25,306
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled ERTE SRR AETE - —ARIL30RER
on 30-day terms. 4E o
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

25. B E

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—HBRZZ-N

2018 are as follows:

F-A-BZAWAEEHBWT

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—2-NE | = )N\F

T=A=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000

Short-term advances received from customers

Sale of goods and provision of software,
GETS and BPO services

Provision of software implementation
and related services, IT solutions

FiBT BT

BEWEFF %
SHE S m MR B

BINETE 5 RIS

R TS AR N AR 75 4,875 2,725
BB E e R AR RS

BB RA T RE R

implementation and related services 18 78 AR 7% 18,356 17,682
Maintenance e 33,723 35,969
Total contract liabilities BRAEBRE 56,954 56,376

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver BB EBERINE MR R
goods and software licence and render software implementation and RERGEiERABERE - EARRER
related services, IT solutions implementation and related services, 77 2R E e N AR 8 AR 75 DA I M 7 AR 75 BT A B
and maintenance services. The increase in contract liabilities in 2018 WREE - —F— \FHNE A FEIE N
was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances received from FTEHRNFEEHEEREE RIRHEMHE
customers in relation to the sales of goods and provision of software IR B 58 ER B SR AN o

at the end of the year.
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26. DEFERRED TAX

26. IEEFIE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax a

At 1 January 2018

ssets

profit or loss during the year

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2018

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2018

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to

the consolidated

profit or loss during the year

Tax paid
At 31 December 20

FR EEHBREERAGBZESHNT

EEBHEE

2018
—E-N\F
Temporary

differences of
deferred
revenue
BELEWA 2
ERER
HK$’000
FHExT

R-ZF—\F—H—H 2,984
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of ~ FRAFKR LR S BHFR 2
RIETHIA (122)
ME 5, =58 (149)
R-ZE-\Ft+-_A=1+—H 2,713
R EE &
2018
—E-N\E§

Fair value

adjustments

arising from

Revaluation  acquisition of Withholding
of properties subsidiaries taxes

s

MEDRZ
MRE ARERR BB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET THET THT
R-ZE—-N\F—-H—H 1,526 11,008 2,713 15,247

FRMG/ Gt HE
statement of Bk JELERE
52 (1,430) 570 (808)
BEfHIA - - (1,709) (1,709)
18 R-FB—N\F

+=A=+—H 1,578 9,578 1,574 12,730
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2017

Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2017

Deferred tax liabilities

R=—ZT—+F—A
FRMKRGAERER

&5 =%
R=ZZE—+tF+=-A=+—H

'(:i179

26. IELEBLIE (&)
EERBEE

2017
—E—tF

Temporary

differences of

deferred

revenue

BEEWAZ

TR ER

HK$'000

FHTT

—A 2,994
ZIRET IR

(214)

204

2,984

EER IS &

2017
—E—tF
Fair value
adjustments

arising from
Revaluation acquisition of Withholding
of properties subsidiaries taxes
Lhg
fEARZ
MEE N EFHE AMB st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TR THT THET TET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—+tF—HF—H 1378 12,438 3,658 17,474
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ F IR,/ (Gt A) &R A
the consolidated statement of BaR ZELHIE
profit or loss during the year 148 (1,430) (665) (1,947)
Tax paid BAIHIE - - (280) (280)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+=H
=+—H 1526 11,008 2713 15,247
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 26. IELEBLIE (&)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding BRI EMMERE - IR B R L
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the ZINERFEMBIINEEEAT KR EER
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The 0% TEMREHT - FEREE _TZN
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings F-—A—ARBEY WERAR-_ZZ+F
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied TZA=FT—HAZEMEEZEF - HF
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction A ER G SR & 2B BT AT AlARE R B ER T
of the foreign investors. For the Group’s subsidiaries established Bk B ATRABK Z BB R - K&
in Mainland China, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group BN BEAE S 2 [HBAREBREA
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed 5% 10%° ALt - BEZTEZENF—H—H
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of 8 AEEARZENT B A 2
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. B A B P E A B FE DK 2 IR E ST TR
i o

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain subsidiaries R EHEEER  AEET &G AR
of the Group established in Mainland China, no deferred tax has ALK S 2 B T M B A Fl R E A
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on MIBINTE B A E B 2 TR i RIE R
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes. In He ARAEZRA RARRKE  HF
the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that MEB AR TAAGEDIRZEEN KT
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable —N\F+-—A=+—H HEHRBEABZ
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated MEBARKRERBACYREZHETELH
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred #92,452,000% 7T (ZF —+H 4 : 2,408,000
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately J0) MW EERIEERIEEE -

HK$2,452,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$2,408,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of NN TN E E m) E AR SRR A AR BT EE A F
dividends by the Company to its shareholders. 155 -
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26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 26. IELEBLIE (&)
Tax losses not recognised REDNHIBEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised RFERBLEER ~XEBREBEER
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$2,234,000 T SRR TE B 18 492,234,000 7L (ZF —+
(2017: HK$2,003,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong F : 2,003,000 70) ¢ A EEBR BRI SH R B
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for ERELEBBARIZ RRERTUGN - H
offsetting against future taxable profits arising in Hong Kong of the MR EHIEERA - ARZEEIERA
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not EE—BRATHEEBEZMBAR R 3
been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in R % E B A B R 2K FERR TR ) 2R
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and/or due to B AITERIA R R R R TR R BE B B AR
the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams of the companies Tt A A R VE IR SE A TR S 18 - M R ph 3%
in which the losses arose, and it is currently not considered probable EEEBERELEHRIBEEE -
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BRA
Shares gy

Authorised: JEERRAN

2018
—B-N\%F

2017
—F—tF
HK$'000
THET

HK$’000
TET

1,000,000,000 (2017: 1,000,000,000) ordinary
shares of HKS0.10 each

1,000,000,000 % (=& —£4F :
1,000,000,000 f%) & A% B 1&

0.1078 70 2 @A 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREBERA
249,488,384 (2017: 244,194,198) ordinary 249488384 1% (—Z—+ 4 :
shares of HK$0.10 each 244,194,198 iR ) AR E (B
01082 EBR 24,949 24419
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 27. IR (48)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Shares (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital, share premium account and shares held under the restricted
share award scheme is as follows:

e 1n ()
ADREEATEBBA B0 5 E IR AR
R R AR 1) SR st Bl 2 AR1A B
2T

Shares held
under the
Number Share restricted
of shares Issued premium  share award
Ordinary shares inissue capital account scheme
BEARH
BET BT R RAEREE
EER RO EE &S nER BEzRH M@
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER THER TER TER
At1 January 2017 R-Z—+F—f—H 244,194,198 24419 38493 (2447) 60465
Vesting of shares held under BB R &5
the restricted share award REERA
scheme kir 58 29 - = = 528 528
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF
and at T January 2018 TZA=+-Ak
RZE-N\E—H—H 244,194,198 24419 38,493 (1919) 60,993
Purchase of shares held under & B 1R 15 5 IR I i {7 12 &)
the restricted share award FERE 2R,
scheme 29 - - - 4,410) 4410)
Vesting of shares held under 184578 BR I i 1 22 E) 512
the restricted share award BERN 5B
scheme 29 - - = 520 520
Shares issued in lieu of MR R EET 2 IR D
dividend 5,294,186 530 14,611 - 15,141
At 31 December 2018 RZT—N\F
+=A=1+—H 249,488,384 24,949 53,104 (5.809) 72,044
Share options -

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 28 to the financial
statements.

Restricted shares

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 29 to
the financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 28. BIRRESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The share
option scheme entitles the holders of share options granted under
the scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any
time during the exercisable periods of the options. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”).
Eligible participants of the 2012 Scheme include the Company’s
directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), other employees of the Group, consultants or
advisers of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any other
person, at the sole discretion of the directors. The 2012 Scheme
became effective on 19 November 2012 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2012 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the 2012 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

ARBEE—ABEREE T2BENR
HBASBEEBRMIELEMZAERSH
EFRMHHMBNEE - ZERRESIE T
FARBZTBIFTE TREEZ A LR
RERENTERAR  BERBARF L
Rk - BREY ERERS A AKIARE
FRBRARELERE -

RARBERM —BBERESE (==
——FHE]) —B——FFHEZAEK
LHEEVREARNRES ((RmEATTRIEH
TETIHRBYER) AEEEMES -
AEBEBEMRFBAAL  AAEBHEE
MR 2 ER AEEEFFE - ARF]
BRREMEMAL (HESE2EBBR
E) o  ZE—ZHHERZZE—Z=-F+—
A+ LB AR - B - BRIESITEHTE
] BRIGFEIBRZ AR +FERADAE
B e

BIE—T——F:r8 BEERHARE Y
MAITEBRESE RS A AEEETE
B fh 2N 2 AR B 8 B 31T IR 2 10% o
REMR+—E B HE - BIE-_F— —F5t
EMBEERBEER TN 2 BIRER 21T
ZRMHEBE ZZEAR T EREE 3T
BB 2 1%  EfEE— SR B BEAREZ
BB AER RN BRE RS IE - HAE

=
g ©

BYARRZESTHEIERE  HWEFE
BB AL ZBREASTREE IR
TTEEHLE o 1O - AREA+ =B A 83
ARFARBEEMRKIBUYIFNTES
WS EMBEA L ZEFBREBERAN
NEIRNEREREZ 2 EBITRD01% - A
7R i UM 2 A B (IRIBA R B2 R IE X
B AR ERE) BEsE AT
QAR AEBRRAS EBSRERALE -
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28.

29.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the 2012 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current and prior years
and subsequent to the end of the reporting period under the 2012
Scheme.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31
May 2017 (the “Renewed Date”) under which shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees
(including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of the Award Scheme
and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also established by the
Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme. The Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
Renewed Date. Further details of the Award Scheme are also set out
in circulars of the Company dated 29 April 2008 and 26 April 2017.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

28.

29.
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29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 29. EREIR M RENGTE (&)

(CONTINUED)

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares currently permitted
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration of
the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time or such other percentage as notified to
them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other incentive or share
option schemes and under the Award Scheme must not exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time). Subject
to the aforesaid limit, the maximum number of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the year end date of
the preceding financial year of the Company for any 12-month period
up to and including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum
number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected
Employee under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the year end date of the
preceding financial year of the Company.

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”), the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) shall select the Selected Employees and determine the
number of the Awarded Shares to be awarded. The Board shall cause
to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”) the purchase price and
the related expenses from the Company's resources for the shares of
the Company to be purchased by the Trustee. The Trustee is a third
party appointed by the Board for the administration of the Award
Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase from the market such number of
shares of the Company awarded as specified by the Board and shall
hold such shares until they are vested in accordance with the Scheme
Rules.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by
the Board at the time of making the award and becomes entitled
to the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award, the
Trustee shall transfer the relevant vested Awarded Shares to that
employee at no cost. The Selected Employee however is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived
from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her. The said
income or distributions shall be used by the Trustee for payment of
the Trustee's fees or expenses or for purchase of further shares of the
Company for the Award Scheme.

WEFIR IR SRE T RN BT 2 R AR
2 RER DA BREE AR A BT B BT
BARZI0%HEETSBANEE 2 ZEME
2 b (AR 2 AR 15 1F ] E #h 42 Bh =5 B8 AR 4
AEIRERAEEREERITENMERE
BEETERA FRITZRNDEE 2R
REFASBARARATREEITRMHZ
30%) o ER EHRREE  BEMEER LA S
(BEZA) 2E M+ @A/ - BigiE
Btala Lz RBROSESEE - 75
BBARNR A REFEF/ABAZEE
17 B 7R 29% o AR & 48 B 51 2 7] 1) 1 Bl & En
BEBRLZEBRNEEE TEHEA
ARAB E—AFBREFEEFLER 2BEITR
1% ©

REEERZBE2ERRA (53R
1)) ARREFe(EF8)) AEL
BEER UBESKHZ ZRBRNEE -
EEeARGREITA(READ K
ARZARRBAR » AARRZBIRAXFE
AXNBABRIEHER XETARES
EREEEREAEZF =T - XEAR
RIERABAESTEMEE ARFRD
BRBERD YARERD BEEZE
R ERANTIARB AL -

FRIERBEKEZTSNEL BB
EZ—YBBHT(REeRERBE R X
REGMH)  LERESHEKERDTR
ZARBRME  XEARBHEBEBR
BEOREERTZER - AWM Z&EH
EREETFUWEEAIMAK DI - Flan(m
BREEEREBRBBRNEEZRE - £t
WARDRAHZTEAARIAZEAR
R EAZ 8 2 L AR BB -
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 29. BRI RENETE (&)

(CONTINUED)

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia, the
Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired out of
the income derived therefrom.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$1,858,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$691,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 387,000 Awarded Shares
(2017: 397,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and transferred to
certain executive directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2018, upon the
vesting of certain Awards Shares, the carrying value of the shares held
under the restricted share award scheme account of the Company
was reduced by HK$520,000 (2017: HK$528,000) and such amount
was transferred to the share-based payment reserve of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Trustee acquired
for the Award Scheme 1,486,000 ordinary shares of the Company
through purchases on the open market at a total cost (including
related transaction costs) of approximately HK$4,410,000. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, no ordinary shares of the Company
were acquired by the Trustee for the Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 2,075,000 Awarded
Shares were awarded to certain employees of the Group, which will
be transferred to the employees at nil consideration, subject to the
satisfaction of certain service conditions, upon vesting in various
tranches, with the last tranches ending on 30 April 2023.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

29. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding under
the Award Scheme during the year:

Weighted

average

fair value
at grant date

per share
REHBH
R

FHATE

At 1 January R—HA—H
Awarded during the year FAET

Vested during the year FRGE

Forfeited during the year FREZIK

At 31 December KR+=—A=+—H

Out of the total of 12,045,000 Award Shares awarded, 4,250,000
Awarded Shares were awarded to the executive directors of the
Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 2,393,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.0% of the Company’s ordinary
shares in issue at that date.

‘c:l187

29. HRFIR M0 EEEE (&)

FA - REZBFEASRE REARTRZ
HR AT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F B
Weighted
Number of average Number of
unvested fair value unvested
Awarded at grant date Awarded
Shares per share Shares
PR B
AEEBRB S REBRE
ROBE THRFE P in &8 B
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2.21 735,000 213 1,162,000
243 2,075,000 - -
1.95 (387,000) 196 (397,000)
2.62 (30,000) 262 (30,000)
2.44 2,393,000 221 735,000

EFEH 2 & 312,045,000 0% 22 B AR 1 B
B RZA R " #1TE H 1 4,250,000 A% 2 E)
v

REER SV BEHRRE R  ARARIBELRE
YT 218 R 538 2 22BN AR (D B8R B /& 2,393,000
B ARRRZBZERITERKRLY
1.0% o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

30. RESERVES 30. f#E

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 75 to 76 of the financial
statements.

The Group’s contributed surplus originally represented the excess
of the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the
date of their acquisition pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 29
April 1998, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries,
which are established in the PRC, has been transferred to reserve
funds which are restricted as to use. The subsidiaries are not required
to effect any further transfer when the amount of the reserve funds
reaches 50% of their registered capital.

The Group’s goodwill reserve represents goodwill which arose on
the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years and remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as further explained in note
14 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) Aslessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to two years (2017: one to two years). The
terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

Q 189

31. KEHEEZRH

(a) EREHEA
AEERBLKEHERHEAEER
B (MaE3)  BEZAHN T
—EMFTF(ZFE—LF: —EM
F) - MEGRR—RIFEREL
RERE 3 /,\$ETF“‘H%EEH$>R

R=B—\F+-A=+-8 &
58 1R 6 SR LT 5 2 6T TR
B2 A TR B R E T A
B2 SITE SR EMT -

Within one year —$W
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FERFE (R

(b) Aslessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to three years (2017: one to four years).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

2018 2017
—E-—N\E§ —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T T T
2,060 2,797
FREEME) 37 2,089
2,097 4,386
(b) fEBAFEA

AEEREBELEHELHEERS
THAEME REMWEMBEL
BN F—2=F(ZF—tF: —
EMEF) o

RZE-N\F+_A=+—H" &
SERER N5 R E W 2 A #
HEEHEMN ARERN 2 &EHE

Within one year —¢W

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

SHEWT :
2018 2017
—E-—N\E§ —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
7,646 5,754
BEEEME) 9,691 2,998
17,337 8,752
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. AREE

33.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2017: HK$27,800,000), of which
HK$22,930,000 (31 December 2017: HK$20,537,000) was utilised as at
31 December 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

RIFEMREE R - WARNMBHRRALE
R 2 AR EWT -

RATERAEFEAEZEZETELAMBES
MIRITE L 2 BHORE ERMSE TRTT
M A231,7000008 T (ZE—tF+=
B=-+—H : 27,800,000 7T) Z &% -
HF22930008 L (ZE—+EF+=A
=+—H :2053700087L) ER=_Z— N\
F+-—A=+—HHH-

33. BEAETRS

BRIt EPBHRREMBHFL RS - &
BER RN ARERFRGETT T
BALRS

AEBTEEBABZMESWT

2018 2017
—E-N\E

—T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET

Short term employee benefits EHESET 12,253 9,883
Equity-settled share-based payment expense AR HE 4 E AR (0 2 S B S 1,058 479
Post-employment benefits BB 2 12 A 113 87
Total compensation paid to key management SNEEERAEZ

personnel i< B8 13,424 10,449

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

EEME 2 — SRS IR RAMTRE 7 -



Q 191

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B EE (AR)

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. W ITEZDE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ERRIMBTARRSHEEER 2RE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
2018 —E-N\F¥
Financial assets MBKEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

RAVESBEARZHBEE

Designated
assuch Financial assets
upon initial Held for atamortised
recognition trading cost
DS &
RO EIR BAFIR2
EEfZRZ HIEEE BBEE w@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THT THRT TERT TERT
Trade receivables EWE 5 - - 43,572 43,572
Deposits and other receivables e REMEKIE - - 6,766 6,766
Financial assets at fair value BRATELERARZ
through profit or oss S AE 4,633 10,164 - 14,797
Pledged bank deposits BEBRTER - - 2,100 2,100
Cash and cash equivalents RehERHGEE - - 255,545 255,545
4,633 10,164 307,983 322,780
Financial liabilities g =R

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

DA 88 B A<

SRz

g S =K

HK$’000

FHET

Trade payables FERTE 5 AR 24,533
Other payables H fth fE AT kI8 27,936
Financial liabilities included in accruals FTABRTRIE B EE 5,570
58,039

MERGEEEGRAR =2 \FFR
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31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. I T EAZDHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
2017 —E—+t5F
Financial assets BKEE

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

BRATELESAR
LHBEE

Designated Available-

as such for-sale

upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading receivables asset Total

R HERE ERR AftHE
EEEZAR BIEEE R RIE RKEE @ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT THT THT THT
Available-for-sale investment AHEEERE - - - 1,780 1,780
Trade receivables EYE 5 R K - - 41,363 = 41363
Deposits and other receivables e RAEMEYRIE - - 4,804 - 4,804

Financial assets at fair value BRATELERARZ
through profit or loss BREE 2,544 10857 = - 13401
Pledged bank deposits BHEBBTER = - 1071 - 1071
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRSEE - - 246,547 - 246,547
2,544 10,857 293,785 1,780 308,966
Financial liabilities BHaE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR $5 B 2N
PR
AR
HKS$'000
THTT
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRK 25,306
Other payables E o pE S 508 29,874
Financial liabilities included in accruals FTAERRIB B EE 3,980
59,160
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35. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to

their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, trade payables, other payables and financial
liabilities included in accruals approximate to their carrying amounts

largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on

quoted market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt

investments is based on available market prices.

In prior years, the fair value of the available-for-sale investment was

based on available market prices.
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B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. MIBITAAFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 2 (&)
Fair value hierarchy NEEZEREE
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRETRAEBEVBITAZ ATEFES
the Group's financial instruments: WBRFE
Assets measured at fair value: BAFEFEZEE :
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZF—)NF+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ATEHBRANTEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
E R EXAERE BAFUERE
mIHHRE WA HE WAHE

(B18) ($28) ($38) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Financial assets at fair value BAFELER AR
through profit or loss: ZHBEE
Listed equity investments ETRAKRE 10,164 - - 10,164
Debt investments BBRE 2,533 2,100 - 4,633

12,697 2,100 - 14,797
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. MR TEAEAFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) g (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EERERS (E)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BRAFESNEZEE : (8)
As at 31 December 2017 R-FE—FFf—-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

ATEH ERAUTEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (EYE W) (Level 3)
VBB ERUTEHE EATAIEHER
miZHRE PN ¢ PN ¢

(E18) (%28) (%38) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Available-for-sale investment: AHHERSE :
Club membership debenture CHEeHEES - 1,780 = 1,780
Financial assets at fair value BRAFELER AR
through profit or loss: ZHBEE
Listed equity investments EHRRAEKE 10,857 = = 10,857
Debt investment BEIRE 2,544 = = 2,544
13,401 1,780 = 15,181
Liabilities measured at fair value: BRAFESEZERE:
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value AEBR-_ZE—NER-_ZET—+F+_—HA
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. = +—HBHUYEEMEAFEAEZHEE
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN B BREELHKEEmMS £
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for IBHEEIECHABEQATEAEEY -
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2017: Nil). MEALEAFEEAFELFIE (=
—tF &) -

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. KA REEEZERBE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and other payables,
financial liabilities included in accruals, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and an available-for-sale investment, which
mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits with
floating interest rates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

AEEZ T EVBITABREEERRITHE
FARRENEFRARSEE - HEWHT
AZIZRBIAAEEZXERE - K
SEEHMBERVBEENRAE  WEK
BHEN  ReEREMEKKIR  BHNE
ZRA R EMEN IR - G AR AL
MBRE BAFEKBER ARIVBE
Eh—HAFRLERE  UWFEMHBEER
AETIREXRTEEEREL -

AEBMBTAEEZTZRBR AT XE
B SNERRR - EERR  RAEBRERR
ERBETRAR EFEERMALFE TX
Pt & 38 45 TR UL 35 LR 2 R e

A == B
AEBRETSHLLH AL AR E
ERAEEERRRITRBIBHFI RS
ZHERRITEREM -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 S 2 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —=— \F+_A=1+—H

Q 197

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. R BREEEEREE (&)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A= E R ()

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on

TRBIIER A R B B TE 2 R
T AEEZBBAER GEBTBFIE
BITHBRBTERAELE) WHEA

floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points

HEyin
(R 4)

72 4 R B 2 SRR o

Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax
BRBE A= R
2, GaA)

2018 —E2-N\EF

Hong Kong dollar PETT (25)
United States dollar X7 (25)
RMB AR (25)
Hong Kong dollar AT 25
United States dollar Eiv 25
RMB AR 25
2017 —ET—+tF

Hong Kong dollar AT (25)
United States dollar Eiv (25)
RMB AR (25)
Hong Kong dollar PETT 25
United States dollar E=Vv 25
RMB AR 25

There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained

profits.

HK$’000
TET

(129)
(265)
(232)

129
265
232

BRREE RIS - HARE RS BT

£ ,
=

MR EER AR

—T— )\ FF3f



198 D

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
51 35 3 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \fF+=-A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. U AMEERERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk = 2 b
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEEEHRZZEEER - tRABREER
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses BERNEESUERZEMLNEEEAINE
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’ BRI WA R REEZRARRAX
functional currencies.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TR EMBEEMERERT TS 2IBR
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB T AEERREHEAE R 2 RBADR
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's MEEEKEERBEBEAFERE) HA
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets REEEAESBEEH 2 GRIEE -
and liabilities).

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax

ExEH B B8 AT 3
(NE) 8 (R4)

% HK$’000
FET
2018 —B-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT HARERE 5 897
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i/ 7T 5% A R EE FHE (5) (897)
2017 —E—+tF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT HARERE 5 (656)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i 7T 3 A R ¥ FH-{E (5) 656
There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained BRARE B FIN SR EERE S ET R
profits. 2.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. M ERERE B ZERBUER (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk EEmRE
The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and REBEXEZHRANREERTZE=F&
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that most customers FEERRETRS - RBAKE ZHR -
who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain extent subject to A EBIZEERTETRIZERE ' &
certain credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances REELENEBBETEERFZRER It
are monitored by the Group's management on an ongoing basis. N EEESR MRS A S B EIEERHE

B o

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December REB-NF+-A=+—HZESAR
2018 RRNF B TR R
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure TRETERAEEEERRNEEER
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly kesEERR  ETENEHER AHEE
based on past due information unless other information is available (BRIEMNETHEBBRLKAKE NHIER
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as THREEMER)  RRZZE-—N\F+=
at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented are gross carrying A=T—BS&BMERE 2382
amounts for financial assets. HAMGEAENREAE -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A
BHEE
B EHRHEEER

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach

F-BBR F-RR E=RR @itk
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Trade receivables* [EUE Z 8RR - - - 47,104 47,104
Contract assets* BHEE - = = 20,695 20,695
Deposits and other receivables Be Rk EAMEKRE

~ Normal** —EFE* 6,766 - - - 6,766
Financial assets at fair value BRTEEEZARL

through profit or loss VBEE 14,797 - - - 14,797
Pledged bank deposits BRI R

— Not yet past due — # AR 18 2,100 = = = 2,100
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRSEE

— Not yet past due — R ARE 255,545 = = = 255,545

279,208 - - 67,799 347,007

MERGEEEGRAR =2 \FFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+_-_A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES MR EE RS RBEE ()

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued) EERR (&)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December R-ZE-NF+-A=t—HzBEAK

2018 (continued) &Fﬂim H FT R B BR (48)

& For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the RASEREABEAEFERENERE
simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision % EAREHEE ERBEEEMNER
matrix is disclosed in notes 18 and 21 to the financial statements, DR BRI A mR MR 18 21 o
respectively.

3 The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered to be = st ¥22 & R HL b & WO RR T8 5K 460 B % 3 £ & R}
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating ARV BEEBN P EREEERR KR
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial #nc AR RS REMERRENEE
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered BEZRIER] BRI QBT BEENGE
to be “doubtful”. EEERIREK] -

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017 R-ZB—tF+-A=+—HZEERAR

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise REBEMBMEEE  SREEHRTE

pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt investments HBHeRERBSEE BHREENUK

and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of meRkHMERFIBEZEERRFEERE
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying RBEFEN s RRAE wﬁ@lﬁb%l
amounts of these instruments. A ZHREE -

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and HRASEEZZHRREERTZES

creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. FIREERTETRS  WESERSR -

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, EEETRKBHRE HFHiRME )SUE

by geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the TESIHBEDEE - RIEHAHEE

reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk HRAEBEWE ZERETETR G 214%

as 21.4% (2017: 22.8%) of the total trade receivables of the Group ZE—tF 2028%) BEWEBRRTT

were due from certain departments/units of the Government of the REBRR (AEBSZATRE) & THM/

HKSAR, the Group's largest customer. Bl sHE  WAEEEAX —ERFEET

2B o

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit BREAEBERBEWE SRS MEAX ZEE

risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the Rk E— T EEDTEE - R FHwE

financial statements. MzE 184 55 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 S 2 Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z&— \F+=-A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEKREEBEREEK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk B% 2 8 1% B bz
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities AR Z (B A& BB 52 46 F S IR R 48 BN 7l 7%
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the HFEBEZFEBRRAEF 2 A FEREE
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price 2B o NEE IRAEERBIRNEZ
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial E-N\EFERZE—+tF+_A=1+—H0F
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments in BRAFERKESARIYBEE-—BHS
Hong Kong (note 22) as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The Group's ETBERAEE (HaE22) 2 @RI E -
listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong REEZ EMRAREREBBERF
Kong Limited and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of BRAR LT RmEHREEEBZMS
the reporting period. HMEE -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change TRESEMEEMEREFIE BN
in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments, with all TRARFT ARG LR - NEREER
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on BE KNEE EMRAIREN RS HELE
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. BRAZATEGES10%E - HEEER 2

BFIRE -

Carrying Increase/
amount of (decrease)
equity in profit
investments before tax

BRAEREZ BR B Al 3 7
SREE 80 OB

HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHERT
2018 —E-N\F
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EBE LT 2RARE -
— Held-for-trading —RBEEER 10,164 1,016
2017 —ZE—+tF
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: BB LM ZBRAEE :
~ Held-for-trading —FEER 10,857 1,086
There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained BRARE R AN AR EE RS E TR
profits. £

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —Z— \F+—A=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES M EREE R ZERBER (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk REBESRRE
The Group's objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to meet AEEZE T&Ei#rﬁﬁf%f@ﬁi%@ﬁ/i\ﬂfﬁ
its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short and long HEBMRRHAZMBEEGHNR B2
term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and mBEERRE  AEEERRERE]
maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and bank deposits BRARHARMASEZEMTHRE &ﬁﬁ
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations TR FEARBITER - WHEERS
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows MERBENITE SREEEBRER
of the Group are closely monitored by senior management on an VERREECRERE -

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of the R EHEEER - AEBRES LR
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, RENRFEECHMBEEIHBEREAT
is as follows:

2018
—2-\F
Lessthan3  3toless than
On demand months 12 months Total
= 2:
REREER DPR=EA T=EAR Hat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET
Trade payables [N E 5 IR 21,292 2,098 1,143 24,533
Other payables H & 5 5K - 27,936 - 27,936
Financial liabilities included in AR FRIE L
accruals HBaRE - 5,570 - 5,570
Guarantees given to banks for RASEREZE AT
performance bonds/guarantees X EHBHRE
issued in relation to certain R RRITH
contracts undertaken by the Group  Z &R 22,930 - - 22,930
44,222 35,604 1,143 80,969
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. IEAREEEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESRK (F)
2017
ZE—+F
Less than 3 3to less than
On demand months 12 months Total
REREE PR=1EA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FET FET
Trade payables FERT 8 SR 22,251 2223 832 25,306
Other payables H At fE IR = 29,874 - 29,874
Financial liabilities included in STAEETRIA 2
accruals B%aE - 3,980 - 3,980
Guarantees given to banks for BRAKEREZET
performance bonds/guarantees A& I8 B (R &
issued in relation to certain ERmMARITIRM
contracts undertaken by the Group ~ Z #&4R 20,537 - - 20,537
42,788 36,077 832 79,697
Capital management EXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

AEEEAERZIZANEAREARE
BRFECEZRNLEFBREARL K
IR HE R ABRR G REAEE -

AEBERBEBERR cERLNEREEZ
RRAE - THEMREEERNEERE
HAAE - AEE A ABEFHBEHRRIRE
ZBB - ABRRBEEEARLBITHR &R
FAABREANGERE - AKBEHEETEMN
SNEREIIZ BEARRE - BE_FT—\FR
“E—+tHFF+ZRA=t+—HIEFER K
SEZEAEREER BRAEFAES

REME 2 EARHPTABRRER T D AR

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. QB MR &R

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company R EHREE B AR RRPTBRRET CE
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT

2018 2017
=

—T—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000

THET

THETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B R RIRE 146,268 183,247
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables T A< IR B E A FE YRR IE 255 251
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEEE 1,506 3,117
Total current assets MEEELE 1,761 3,368
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Accruals JESTFRIR 417 365
NET CURRENT ASSETS nEEEFE 1,344 3,003
Net assets BEFE 147,612 186,250
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 24,949 24419
Share premium account f% 17 (B BR 53,104 38,493
Shares held under the restricted share award RIE A R HIA% D SZE) 5T 2l

scheme HE 2’5 (5,809) (1,919
Share-based payment reserve (note) A& 1 1 Sk i s (FfEEE) 4,246 2,908
Retained profits (note) RE &AM (MHEE) 41,523 93,253
Proposed final and special dividends (note) R R B R AR AR B (B aE) 29,599 29,096
Total equity “arE 147,612 186,250
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. AR MBEMRRE (&)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: MIEE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ARAEEREOT :

Share-based

Proposed final

Contributed payment Retained and special
surplus reserve profits dividends Total
BREAR BRIRRAR
BAEER & REEF RIS st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT T TExT T FTEx
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—+%—-H—H - 2,745 41616 24,207 68,568
Profit for the year REE R - - 104,980 - 104,980
Vesting of shares held under the RIBA IR HIA (7 2Bt &l
restricted share award scheme RERGDZHE = (528) - - (528)
Share award arrangements % 17 B2 R % HE - 691 - = 691
Final and special 2016 dividends ER=ZT—AFRER
declared BRI S - = (20) (24,207) (24227)
Interim and special 2017 dividends ~ =ZF—+t&FFHREFFIRE - - (24,227) = (24,227)
Proposed final and special 2017 Bk =T — R R
dividends (¢S = = (29,09) 29,09 -
At 31 December 2017 and at RZZ—tF
1 January 2018 +=ZA=+—-HkK
R=ZZE—N\¥—HF—H = 2,908 93,253 29,096 125,257
Profit for the year REE R = = 1 - 1
Vesting of shares held under the IR A IR I8k 5 5B =t 2
restricted share award scheme BERDZEE - (520) = = (520)
Share award arrangements IR 17 52 & 5 - 1,858 - - 1,858
Final and special 2017 dividends ER-ZE-EFREAR
declared BRI R - - 90 (29,096) (29,006)
Interim 2018 dividend B N\FHRHRA - - (22,222) - (22,222)
Proposed final 2018 dividend BR-ZE—N\ERHERE - - (29,599) 29,599 -
At 31 December 2018 R_T—N\F
+-A=+—8” - 4,246 41,523 29,599 75,368

The Company’s contributed surplus originally represented the excess of the
aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of their
acquisition pursuant to the Group reorganization on 29 April 1998, over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company may make distributions to its
members out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

ARABZHBABRBRERER - NWANFOEA
“tHABZEEER  EREBEMBARZEH
ZEMBRRZAEEFEBHARRMERR
REmEITRD ZEE -

B—NWN\—FBRERFEL QA
AIABABRRBRRIEL DK

RETHERT

M EGEEERAR T \FFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2R B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2018 —&=— \F+_A=+—H

38. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform
with the current year's presentation and disclosures. The directors
of the Company consider that such reclassifications allow a more
appropriate presentation of the Group's results of operations and
better reflect the nature of transactions.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 6 March 2019.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

YRS

31 DECEMBER 2018 —=— \F+_A=1+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

1. Units 1, 2 and 3 on 11" Floor
Westlands Centre
No. 20 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

2. Unit No. AT on Level 21
Golden Eagle International Plaza
No. 89 Hanzhong Road
Jianye District
Nanjing
Jiangsu Province
People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

3. Unit No. E on Level 12
And Car Parking Space
No.44 Jinming Building
No.8 Zunyi South Road
Changing District
Shanghai
PRC

4. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26
South Tower
Guangzhou World Trade Centre
Complex
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road
Dongshan District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
PRC

B
8RR
RS 205%

EFHP L
M1 2K3E

REE AREMBE ([HEH])
LERE

BN

B [@E A B 8998

& & BIBR
8ME

Y

&
RERE
2% 3K 8 5%
SRR A=
NEBEEK
1S B 44557

A Y

EXR4E

=i

RILE

IR R & 371 237558
BMNERE SR LKRE
7 B

261£ 2601 &

(:’:m7

REWZE

Industrial

IXM

Commercial

[SE S

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[HES::

Attributable

interest of the

Group

AEEE

AL

Long term lease 100%
REHEE

Long term lease 100%
REHEE

Long term lease 100%
REHEE

Medium term 100%

lease

hHEIHE
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEFEHBESE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS

AT RAKEEEREAVRERZXENUNRE
ERAGBZHME  NTREEECENR 2 EERY
BRE YD EEWSHOE - UBESL
AR BIZ T RREPERBED -

ES

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=t+—-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E it Sk of 3 —E-RE —E-1f —2-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT THT THT
REVENUE WA 281,427 253915 258,699 219,087 210,762
Cost of sales and services SHE R RSB A (121,492) (110424) (112,578) (100,430) (101,043)
Gross profit el 159,935 143491 146,121 118,657 109719
Other income and gains, net Hit WA R a5 10,084 9,264 5,194 9,383 11,640
Foreign exchange differences, net [ 3 = %8 %48 329 (905) (109) (9,073) (4,481)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AFEYE/ (BB)FE -
Financial assets at fair value BATELESEAR
through profit or loss ZHBEE (384) 1380 235 (58) (30)
Investment properties REMF 4,406 3,590 1,000 3,200 8,125
Selling and distribution expenses ~ $4% &/ $55I % (35,358) (34:497) (33823) (22,980) (23,124)
General and administrative —RETHAZFE
expenses, net (57,788) (55453) (55,799) (48,231) (46,529)
Other expenses Hinfx (6,024) (6,024) (6,024) 821) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBL AR 75,200 60,846 56,795 50,077 55,320
Income tax expense EHRAX (7,172) (6517) (6:451) (5,974) (6,529)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BAREEAERL
ATTRIBUTABLETOOWNERS & E&A
OF THE PARENT 68,028 54329 50,344 44103 48791
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E “E-t% —E-RE —E-1f —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T TET THL THT
TOTAL ASSETS EEAE 631,345 608,150 604,172 539,702 522,640
TOTAL LIABILITIES SEEE (153,281) (155,182) (162,690) (111,084) (99823)
478,064 452,968 441482 428618 422817
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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